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1      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.  By the direction and authority

2 on the Illinois Commerce Commission, I call Docket

3 No. 13-0318, Commonwealth Edison Company an annual

4 formula update and revenue requirement reconciliation

5 under Section 16-108.5 of the Public Utilities Act to

6 order.

7           Will the parties please identify themselves

8 for the record.

9      MR. BERNET:  On behalf of Commonwealth Edison

10 Company, Richard Bernet, 10 South Dearborn, Suite 4900,

11 Chicago 60603 (312) 394-3623.

12      MR. RIPPIE:  Also on behalf of Commonwealth Edison

13 Company, Glenn Rippie, two Ns, R I P P I E of Rooney,

14 Rippie & Ratnaswamy, LLP, 350 West Hubbard, Suite 600,

15 Chicago, Illinois 60654.

16      MR. FEELEY:  Representing Staff and Illinois

17 Commerce Commission, John Feeley, Kelly Turner, and

18 Jessica Cardoni, the office of general counsel,

19 160 North LaSalle Street, Suite C-800, Chicago, Illinois

20 60601.

21      MR. O'BRIEN:  On behalf of the People of the State

22 of Illinois, Karen Lusson, L U S S O N, Timothy O'Brien,

23 Office of the Illinois Attorney General, 100 West

24 Randolph, Floor 11, Chicago, Illinois 60601.

25      MS. HICKS:  On behalf of the Citizens Utility
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1 Board, Christie Hicks, 309 West Washington, Suite 800,

2 Chicago, Illinois 60606.

3      JUDGE DOLAN:  Do we have any appearances over the

4 intranet?

5           Hearing none, let the record reflect that

6 there are no additional appearances.

7           All right.  I believe Ms. Brinkman is going to

8 be our first witness?

9      MR. RIPPIE:  That is correct, your Honors.

10 Pursuant to the schedule that was updated and circulated

11 as of this morning, six witnesses remain with scheduled

12 cross-examination of which the first is Ms. Brinkman for

13 the Company.

14           Mr. Fruehe is also present in the room if your

15 Honors wish to swear him in at the same time.  He would

16 be the second witness.

17      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.  In order to save some time, we

18 could do that.

19           All right.  Please raise your right hands.

20                     (Witnesses sworn.)

21      JUDGE DOLAN:  All right.  Proceed, Counsel.

22

23

24

25
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1 WHEREUPON:

2                    CHRISTINE BRINKMAN,

3 called as a witness herein, having been first duly

4 sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

5                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

6 BY MR. RIPPIE:

7      Q.   Good morning, Ms. Brinkman.  Could you please

8 state and spell your name for the record?

9      A.   Christine Brinkman, B R I N K M A N.

10      Q.   Ms. Brinkman, do you have before you a

11 document that has been marked Commonwealth Edison

12 Exhibit 2.0 Revised, consisting of 41 pages and two

13 cover and title and index pages?

14      A.   I do.

15      Q.   And do you have before you a document that has

16 been marked Commonwealth Edison Exhibit 13, consisting

17 of 42 pages of narrative plus two cover and index pages,

18 together with the attachment thereto marked ComEd

19 Exhibit 13.01?

20      A.   I do.

21      Q.   And do you also have before you a document

22 which has been marked ComEd Exhibit 17.0 which consists

23 of 27 pages plus a cover page and an index page together

24 with attachments, 17.01 and 17.02?

25      A.   I do.
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1      Q.   Ms. Brinkman, is it your intention that those

2 three documents, together with their attachments,

3 constitute your direct rebuttal and surrebuttal

4 testimonies for submission to the -- for consideration

5 rather by the Illinois Commerce Commission in this

6 docket?

7      A.   Yes.

8      Q.   Were each of those documents prepared under

9 your direction and control?

10      A.   Yes.

11      Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions that

12 appear on -- in the narrative on ComEd Exhibit 2.0,

13 13.0, and 17.0 today, would you give me the same answers

14 as appear in those documents?

15      A.   Yes.

16      MR. RIPPIE:  Your Honor, ComEd offers into evidence

17 Exhibit 2.0 Revised, 13.0, 13.01, 17.0, 17.01, and

18 17.02 and tenders the witness for cross-examination.

19      JUDGE DOLAN:  Is there any objections?

20           Hearing none, ComEd Exhibit 2.0 Revised, 13.0,

21 13.01, 17.0, 17.01, and 17.02 will be admitted into the

22 record.

23           Is Staff going to ...

24      MS. CARDONI:  Staff has some questions, your Honor.

25
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1                     CROSS-EXAMINATION

2 BY MS. CARDONI:

3      Q.   Good morning, Ms. Brinkman.  Jessica Cardoni

4 on behalf of Staff.

5      A.   Good morning.

6      Q.   I just have a couple of brief questions about

7 your surrebuttal testimony.  You state that Staff's

8 direct testimony had two errors in calculating the

9 revenue requirement, correct?

10      A.   Can you point me to where?

11      Q.   Sure.  Line 40.

12      A.   Correct.

13      Q.   And is it ComEd's position that Staff's

14 preferred schedules are more subject to error?

15      A.   Which schedules are you referring to?

16      Q.   The schedules that Staff prefers and use in

17 lieu of the formula rate template that ComEd filed?

18      A.   Correct.

19      Q.   And is it also your position that ComEd's

20 formula rate template would avoid those kind of errors?

21      A.   The formula rate template, if it's used to

22 calculate the proposed adjustments that Staff provides,

23 gets us closer to what the actual impacts will be.

24      Q.   But if I could refer you to line 59 of your

25 testimony, you state that if the formula rate template



43

1 was used, these errors would have been avoided as the

2 schedules and appendices are linked and the changes

3 would have (inaudible)?  It's the proper schedules and

4 appendices, that's correct, right?

5      A.   Correct.

6      Q.   It's also true that the formula rate template

7 with schedules and appendices exceeds 30 pages of

8 spreadsheets, isn't it?

9      A.   That may be true.  I don't know offhand, the

10 total number.

11      Q.   Okay.  Well, I could refer you to ComEd

12 Exhibit 14.01 and 14.02, which were the template and

13 supporting work papers filed by Mr. Fruehe, if that

14 helps.

15      A.   Okay.

16      Q.   But would you agree, subject to check, that

17 that sounds approximately correct?

18      A.   I agree.

19      Q.   Okay.  Would you also agree that the

20 supporting work papers exceed 150 pages of spreadsheets?

21      A.   I'm not sure the exact number of work papers.

22 I know there are 22, in total, and those each have

23 multiple pages so ...

24      Q.   You would agree that those are probably

25 accurate, approximate, at least?
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1      A.   Approximate.

2      Q.   Okay.  In your direct testimony at line 228,

3 could you refer to that for a moment?

4      A.   Okay.

5      Q.   There, you noted that ComEd found an error in

6 its projected plant additions; is that correct?

7      A.   I'm sorry.  At line 228?

8      Q.   228.

9      A.   Yeah.  2.0 Revised?  Yeah.  Here, I've got the

10 discussion of the ROE.

11      Q.   I'm sorry.  I didn't hear you.

12      A.   At 2.0 Revised at line 228 --

13      Q.   Yes.

14      A.   -- this is a discussion of the ROE.

15      Q.   Maybe I've got the wrong one.  Hold on a

16 second.

17      MR. RIPPIE:  Can we go off for a second, your

18 Honor.

19      JUDGE DOLAN:  Off the record.

20                     (Discussion off the record.)

21 BY MS. CARDONI:

22      Q.   Ms. Brinkman, if you can refer to your revised

23 testimony at page -- at line 319 and on, you state that

24 there were some inadvertent errors found by ComEd in the

25 calculation of ComEd's projected 2013 plant additions
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1 and related balances; is that correct?

2      A.   Correct.

3      Q.   But you didn't make the change in the

4 template, correct, at that time?

5      A.   At that time, correct.

6      Q.   And at this time, I would like to pass out

7 what has been marked as Staff Cross Exhibit 1.

8                     (Document tendered.)

9 BY MS. CARDONI:

10      Q.   Now, Ms. Brinkman, I've handed you what has

11 been marked as Staff Cross Exhibit 1.  That is Staff's

12 request RWB 22.01 and 22.02 with the attachment 1 sent

13 to ComEd on September 25th and responded by ComEd on

14 September 27th, 2013.  Do you recognize this DR

15 response?

16      A.   I do.

17      Q.   And were you responsible for the response?

18      A.   It was prepared under my direction.

19      Q.   Thank you.  And if I asked you the same

20 question today, would your response be the same?

21      A.   It would.

22      MS. CARDONI:  At this time, Staff would move for

23 the admission into evidence of what has been marked as

24 Staff Cross Exhibit 1.

25      JUDGE DOLAN:  Any objection?
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1      MR. RIPPIE:  There's no objection, your Honors.

2      MS. CARDONI:  And Staff has no more questions of

3 Ms. Brinkman.

4      JUDGE DOLAN:  All right.  Staff Cross Exhibit 1

5 will admitted into the record.

6           Ms. Lusson ...

7      MS. LUSSON:  Yes.  Thanks, your Honor.

8                     CROSS-EXAMINATION

9 BY MS. LUSSON:

10      Q.   Good morning, Ms. Brinkman.

11      A.   Good morning.

12      Q.   First, I would like you to turn your attention

13 to your rebuttal testimony, page 9, specifically line

14 167.

15      A.   Okay.

16      Q.   There, you discuss your disagreement with

17 Mr. Brosch and Mr. Gorman who challenged ComEd's

18 decision to include in the calculation of the

19 reconciliation interest amount a grossed -- a gross up

20 for alleged income tax impacts associated with that

21 amount.  Do you see that?

22      A.   I do.

23      Q.   Now, as I understand your testimony, you claim

24 that Mr. Brosch and Mr. Gorman's removal of the gross up

25 amount is contrary to what the formula rate tariff
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1 requires as approved in ICC Docket No. 13-0386; is that

2 correct?

3      A.   That is my understanding.

4      Q.   And is it also correct that in his rebuttal

5 testimony, Staff witness Bridal indicated that he

6 concurred with the proposed adjustment by Mr. Brosch and

7 Mr. Gorman related to the reconciliation interest gross

8 up amount?

9      A.   I don't recall that Mr. Bridal said he

10 concurred.  I do recall that he had a similar

11 adjustment.

12      Q.   Okay.  Now, the formula rate tariff that was

13 approved in Docket 13-0386 is the formula rate tariff

14 that the Company utilized in the docket; is that

15 correct?

16      A.   On the initial filing, we used a formula rate

17 template that was prior to the 13-0386.  Once we got

18 approval on 13-0386, we did update the formula template

19 in this proceeding.

20      Q.   Okay.  And that was the May 30th filing in

21 this docket?

22      A.   Correct.

23      Q.   And the Company's filing in Docket 0386 that

24 is supposed to reflect the changes made by the general

25 assembly to the original formula rate tariff approved by
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1 the Commission in Docket 11-0721 in the piece of

2 legislation known as SB 9 or otherwise known as Public

3 Act 98-0015; is that right?

4      A.   That's correct.

5      Q.   So are you the person who oversaw the changes

6 that were made to the formula rate tariff as filed in

7 Docket 13-0386?

8      A.   It was prepared under my direction, yes.

9      Q.   Now, that -- again, that tariff was filed, is

10 it correct, on May 30th, 2013, if you recall?

11      MR. RIPPIE:  Ms. Lusson, just a point of

12 clarification, do you mean just the tariff?

13      MS. LUSSON:  Well, the -- I'm differentiating

14 between the tariff that was filed in 13-0386 as compared

15 to the amended formula rate tariff filed in this docket,

16 although they're the same, as I understand it.

17      MR. RIPPIE:  Okay.  Well, just for the sake of the

18 record, my question was, do you mean only the portion of

19 the filing that is the tariff or do you mean the entire

20 template filing?

21      MS. LUSSON:  The entire template filing.

22      MR. RIPPIE:  Thank you.

23 BY MS. LUSSON:

24      Q.   Do you recall the question?

25      A.   Would you mind repeating it?
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1      Q.   Not at all.  So the new tariff, the entire

2 template filing, relative to the changes authorized by

3 SB 9 was filed by ComEd on May 30th, 2013; is that

4 right?

5      A.   That's correct.

6      Q.   And if you know, the Commission then approved

7 that tariff on June 5th, 2013, the next open meeting.

8 Is that your understanding?

9      A.   That is my understanding.

10      Q.   So I want to go back and ask you a few

11 questions as an accountant about your understanding of

12 what changed in SB 9 authorized relative to your filing

13 in Docket 13-0386.  So first of all, would you agree

14 that prior to the passage of SB 9 the Commission had

15 awarded the Company and Ameren Illinois Company in its

16 formula rate a reconciliation interest rate based on the

17 rate of short-term debt?

18      A.   Prior to SB 9, yes, I believe that's correct.

19 I can't speak for sure as it relates Ameren, but for

20 ComEd, certainly that's correct.

21      Q.   Okay.  And in Docket 11-0721, the Company had

22 opposed a rate of reconciliation interest equal to the

23 Company's weighted average cost of capital; is that

24 right?

25      A.   That's correct.
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1      Q.   Now, in the rehearing of Docket 11-0721, you

2 recall there was a rehearing wherein the Commission

3 revisited certain issues including the appropriate

4 reconciliation interest rate in that docket?

5      A.   Yes, I do.

6      Q.   Now --

7      MR. RIPPIE:  Your Honors, let's -- At this point,

8 it is been our view throughout this case that the

9 decision of the Commission and the formula rate template

10 that it established is the formula rate template that

11 must be used in this proceeding.  We understand that

12 there has been a variety of litigation about that matter

13 and that it may be taken with the case, but we do

14 object, for the record, to the conduct of

15 cross-examination or the submission of evidence, the

16 goal of which or the purpose of which is to argue for a

17 calculation that is different than that called for by

18 the established formula rate template.

19      MS. LUSSON:  Was that an objection or I'm not --

20      MR. RIPPIE:  Yes.

21      MS. LUSSON:  -- sure what --

22      MR. RIPPIE:  Yes, it is.

23      MS. LUSSON:  Okay.  Your Honor --

24      MR. RIPPIE:  I suppose it's both a relevance and a

25 scope objection.
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1      MS. LUSSON:  Okay.  Well, your Honors, this

2 testimony -- the issue of whether or not there should be

3 an adjustment to ComEd's gross up of its reconciliation

4 interest amount is a key issue in this case.  We

5 understand ComEd's position on that.  They understand

6 our position on that.  There was no motion to strike

7 filed regarding that proposed adjustment by either

8 Mr. Brosch, Mr. Gorman, or Mr. Bridal.  And in addition,

9 Ms. Brinkman's testimony, which has just been admitted

10 into the record spends a significant amount of time

11 discussing that issue, so I believe certainly I should

12 be permitted to delve into Ms. Brinkman's point of view

13 on this issue.

14      MR. RIPPIE:  As my letter of last week I hope made

15 it clear, we did not and do not believe the optimal way

16 to pursue this issue is on an evidence motion.

17 Nonetheless, we arguably are required to preserve that

18 objection here today and I'm doing that on the record.

19 We certainly agree with the Attorney General that there

20 is a dispute in this case about what that scope is.  And

21 it is our position that that question ought to be

22 resolved as a matter of law and it doesn't require

23 evidence, but in the alternative, there's been evidence

24 submitted.  Nonetheless, we need to preserve the

25 objection for the record and I do make it at this point.
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1 I don't want to continue to make it, so I guess I would

2 ask my colleagues if there would be a stipulation that

3 this could be a continuing objection, but I want to make

4 clear to the Commission and your Honors that we are not

5 waiving our view, that this entire question is one of

6 law and is one of scope and the General Assembly

7 excluded this question from being decided in this case.

8      MR. FEELEY:  Judges, John Feeley for Staff, I would

9 like to point on this.  We all agreed to a schedule

10 where, if anyone had any objections to any testimony,

11 direct or rebuttal, they were to be filed by a certain

12 date.  ComEd didn't file a motion by that date,

13 therefore, they waived that objection to that testimony.

14 That is a process that we all agreed to.  We filed that

15 process with regards to their surrebuttal testimony and

16 we had an objection to it and filed it on the due date

17 that those motions were due.

18      MR. RIPPIE:  I strongly, if I may, disagree with

19 that statement.  There was a date on which motions to

20 strike were due.  There is, to my knowledge, no case law

21 which says that motions in limine are mandatory and that

22 the failure to make them waives an objection, and

23 nothing in the schedule said that those motions were

24 mandatory.  We've made the objection.  We've made it in

25 our pleadings in response to, amongst other things, the
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1 motion to consolidate, and we're renewing it for the

2 record here.  I understand that the Commission may wish

3 to take this question with the case, but I strongly

4 resist any notion that this argument has been waived by

5 anything the Company has done.

6      JUDGE DOLAN:  All right.  Well.  Subject to --

7 We'll -- We do acknowledge ComEd's right to have an

8 objection to the testimony, but we're going to overrule

9 it at this point, but it is on the record that they do

10 have a right to file an objection.

11      MS. LUSSON:  Thank you, your Honor.

12 BY MS. LUSSON:

13      Q.   Ms. Brinkman, I don't recall.  Was there -- I

14 think the last question I asked you was --

15      MS. LUSSON:  Actually, would it be too much

16 trouble, if could you read that back, please.  Thank

17 you.

18                     (Record read as requested.)

19 BY MS. LUSSON:

20      Q.   Okay.  Ms. Brinkman, in the rehearing in

21 Docket 11-0721, the Commission entered an order stating

22 that, contrary to ComEd's proposal for a reconciliation

23 interest rate, based on its weighted average cost of

24 capital, the appropriate interest rate was a short-term

25 interest rate; is that correct?
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1      A.   Can you point to me where I said that in my

2 testimony?

3      Q.   Well, no.  I'm asking for your recollection of

4 what was determined by the Commission in Docket 11-0721.

5      A.   I don't recall the exact language.  I do

6 recall that a short-term debt interest rate came out of

7 that order.

8      Q.   Okay.  And, again, the Company had been

9 proposing that a weighted average cost of capital

10 interest rate be applied to the reconciliation amount;

11 is that right?

12      A.   That is correct.

13      Q.   Now, after the passage of Senate Bill 9,

14 otherwise known Public Act 98-0015, the Commission was

15 required to apply a weighted average cost of capital

16 interest rate rather than what had been previously

17 approved.  Is that your understanding of SB 9?

18      MR. RIPPIE:  Are you asking the witness if she

19 understands SB 9 to legally require the same interest

20 rate that ComEd was arguing for?

21      MS. LUSSON:  I'm --

22      MR. RIPPIE:  I'm confused because it sounded like

23 you were asking her for just a legal opinion about what

24 SB 9 requires but maybe not.

25      MS. LUSSON:  I was asking her if it was her
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1 understanding that SB 9 now required the Commission to

2 apply a weighted average cost of capital interest rate

3 to the reconciliation interest amount.

4      MR. RIPPIE:  So ...

5 BY MS. LUSSON:

6      Q.   Is that your understanding, Ms. Brinkman?

7      A.   That is my understanding.

8      Q.   And that change in law also permitted the

9 Company to retroactively acquire an interest rate based

10 on weighted average costs of capital for the 2011 year

11 reconciliation.  Is that your understanding of SB 9?

12      A.   That's correct.

13      Q.   Now, with respect to the -- ComEd's view that

14 a gross up of the reconciliation interest rate amount is

15 necessary to reflect the impact of income taxes, can you

16 identify anywhere your rebuttal or surrebuttal testimony

17 any specific language in Public Act 98-0015 that

18 specifies any particular treatment of income taxes on

19 the reconciliation interest amount?

20      A.   I don't believe the Public Act states that the

21 weighted average cost of capital should be calculated

22 with or without an interest rate.  I think it is silent

23 to that.

24      Q.   Okay.  Now, I want to show you what I've

25 marked as AG Cross Exhibit 1.
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1                     (Document tendered.)

2 BY MS. LUSSON:

3      Q.   Ms. Brinkman, Mr. Rippie indicated, as I

4 handed the exhibit to him, that you had misspoke or used

5 the incorrect term in your last response.  Did you want

6 to clarify anything?

7      A.   Yeah.  I believe I used the term interest

8 rate.  I meant tax rate.

9      Q.   Tax rate?  Okay.  Thank you for that

10 clarification.

11           So looking at what's been marked as AG Cross

12 Exhibit 1, I've -- this was the Company's response to AG

13 data request 6.07.  Do you see that?

14      A.   Yes, I do.

15      Q.   And was this response prepared by you or under

16 your supervision?

17      A.   It was prepared under my supervision.

18      Q.   And are the answers contained therein still

19 accurate today?

20      A.   They are.

21      Q.   So if you could, turn to part B of that

22 response.  Now, part B asks that the Company indicate,

23 "for each formula rate calculation exhibit previously

24 filed by ComEd in Docket Nos. 11-0721 and 12-0321, state

25 whether or not the Company applied the 'income tax
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1 gross-up' to the weighted average cost of capital and

2 explain the reason for either including or excluding the

3 'income tax gross-up' within each submission."  Do you

4 see that?

5      A.   I do.

6      Q.   And we should clarify, Docket 12-0321 was the

7 Company's first formula rate update case; is that right?

8      A.   That's right.

9      Q.   So looking at your response to part B, that

10 question, you indicate, "ComEd did not apply an income

11 tax gross-up to the costs of the reconciliation revenue

12 deferrals in Docket 11-0721 or Docket 12-0321; is that

13 correct?

14      A.   That is the first part of that answer, yes.

15      Q.   And the second part of that part B also

16 states, "upon review of the changes required as a result

17 of Public Act 98-0015, ComEd believes it should have

18 included an income tax gross-up in its rate formula."

19 Is that that response?

20      A.   That's correct.

21      Q.   So in your opinion -- Is it your opinion that

22 all of the testimony -- in direct, rebuttal, and

23 surrebuttal, and on the hearing in Docket 11-0721, where

24 the formula rate tariff was originally established,

25 ComEd simply overlooked the need to factor up the
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1 weighted average cost of capital for income taxes?

2      MR. RIPPIE:  I object to the form of the question.

3 It calls for speculation.  It is beyond the scope of her

4 testimony.  The data request indicates what the

5 witness's position is.  She's testified to nor indicated

6 in this data request nothing that would suggest she has

7 any basis for concluding why or why not the -- all those

8 individuals in question did what they did.

9      MS. LUSSON:  Your Honor, I'm not asking the witness

10 to speculate.  I'm just asking, was it -- essentially

11 was it a mistake on ComEd's part.  Did they overlook it?

12 That's all I'm trying to get at.

13      MR. RIPPIE:  That's, I think, a different question

14 than you asked.  So if --

15      MS. LUSSON:  I said --

16      JUDGE DOLAN:  Well, do you want rephrase the

17 question, Counsel?  Do you want to rephrase the

18 question?

19      MS. LUSSON:  Sure.

20 BY MS. LUSSON:

21      Q.   Given that response, that is, that the

22 Company, upon review of the changes required as a result

23 of Public Act 98-015 [sic], then is it the Company's

24 position that prior to SB 9 a gross-up was not

25 authorized by Section 16108.5 and that only the
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1 amendment to the Section 16108.5 permitted the gross-up?

2      A.   No, that has not been the Company's position.

3      Q.   So why did the Company not gross up for income

4 taxes, if you know -- First, let me ask, were you

5 involved in the preparation of the formula rate tariff

6 and testimony in Docket 11-0721 and 12-0321?

7      A.   No.

8      Q.   You were not?  So do you have any independent

9 knowledge as to why the Company omitted a -- what they

10 now indicate is an essential part of the formula rate

11 tariff that is authorized by SB 9 in Docket 11-0721?

12      A.   I can't speak specifically as to why that

13 gross-up was not included in prior dockets, but I

14 believe, as we discussed before, those dockets came out

15 with different interest rates other than the WACC.

16      Q.   Right.  But I'm asking about ComEd's proposal

17 because ComEd -- I think you've indicated that ComEd, in

18 fact, in 11-0721 and 12-0321 proposed a reconciliation

19 interest amount of the weighted average cost of capital,

20 correct?

21      A.   Correct.

22      Q.   So was that simply an oversight on ComEd's

23 part to not gross-up for income taxes as it has done in

24 this docket?

25      MR. RIPPIE:  Your Honors, that's where I had the
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1 speculation objection.  And the witness has now, I

2 believe, indicated that she was not involved with the

3 preparation of those materials, so she doesn't have a

4 basis for making that conclusion.

5      JUDGE DOLAN:  Sustained.

6 BY MS. LUSSON:

7      Q.   So let me ask this question then:  Do you have

8 an opinion as to whether or not it was a mistake on the

9 Company's part to not include a gross-up for

10 reconciliation interest in the original 11-0721 docket?

11      MS. LUSSON:  Your Honor, I'm asking for an opinion,

12 if she has an opinion.

13      MR. RIPPIE:  You're asking for an accounting

14 opinion, that is, whether it was an error.

15      MS. LUSSON:  Well, since she's an accountant, yes,

16 I guess that would be an accounting matter.

17 BY THE WITNESS:

18      A.   As an accountant, I believe the impact of

19 income taxes should be applied to the WACC.  Whether

20 that was an error or why it was overlooked in a prior

21 docket, I can't speak to.

22      Q.   Please turn to page 9 of your rebuttal

23 testimony.

24      A.   Okay.

25      Q.   Line 175, that's right below the answer we had
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1 focused on earlier.  There, you state, "as Mr. Fruehe

2 testifies, the revenue that ComEd receives for the

3 interest on the reconciliation balance is subject to

4 income taxes.  If the interest calculation in the

5 formula rate did not recognize this fact, ComEd would

6 not recover or refund its carrying costs related to

7 reconciliation at that rate."  Is that a correct reading

8 of your testimony?

9      A.   That's correct.

10      Q.   With regard to the interest revenue ComEd

11 receives related -- or would receive related to the

12 reconciliation balance and the amount allegedly needed

13 to cover the gross-up for income taxes that you

14 reference here, has anything changed since Docket

15 11-0721 or 12-0321 in terms of any tax law or regulation

16 that makes this fact true today but was not true in

17 those prior cases?

18      A.   I'm not aware of any change in tax law;

19 however, I'm not aware that this wouldn't have been true

20 in prior cases either.

21      Q.   Okay.  Now, if you could turn to page 7 of

22 your surrebuttal testimony, line 115, you ask yourself

23 the question, how do you address the fact that EIMA,

24 E I M A -- it's an acronym -- does not expressly state

25 including a tax gross-up.  Do you see that there?
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1      A.   I do.

2      Q.   Does that reference to EIMA include the

3 changes to EIMA that were caused by Public Act 98-0015?

4      A.   Yes.

5      Q.   Now, at line 155, you state, indeed with the

6 cost of equity, in particular, ComEd and every other

7 utility, have consistently grossed up that equity cost

8 for income taxes.  Do you see that?

9      A.   I do.

10      Q.   So I think you would agree, based on our prior

11 discussion, that ComEd previously did not, in Docket

12 11-0721 or 12-0321 gross up the weighted average cost of

13 capital for income taxes in determining an interest rate

14 to apply to the reconciliation balance, correct?

15      A.   Well, again, my understanding of those orders

16 were that ComEd did not received a weighted average cost

17 of capital interest rate.

18      Q.   But ComEd did not -- I think you've indicated,

19 ComEd did not propose that gross-up in 11-0721 or

20 12-0321, correct?

21      A.   Yes.  It's my understanding that the gross-up

22 was not included in 11-0721.  In 12-0321, we followed

23 the Commission order from 11-0721.

24      Q.   With regard to your reference to "every other

25 utility" that you indicate there, would you agree that
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1 the only other Illinois utility subject to the formula

2 rate provisions, otherwise known as EIMA, E I M A, is

3 the Ameren Illinois Company?

4      A.   Yes.  As far as I'm aware, Ameren is the only

5 other utility that is subject to a formula rate.

6      Q.   And prior to making that statement that we

7 just referenced, did you review the Ameren Illinois

8 Company filing submitted in Docket 13-0301, which is its

9 current formula rate case prior to preparing your

10 testimony about what "every other utility" has done with

11 regard to income tax factor ups applied to the

12 reconciliation interest amount?

13      A.   No.

14      Q.   Do you know whether or not Ameren, in fact,

15 grossed up the interest rate on the reconciliation

16 balance for income taxes in its formula rate update

17 proposals?

18      A.   I'm not aware that they did.

19      Q.   So is it your -- Okay.  So are you -- Then you

20 agree they did not?

21      A.   I haven't look specifically at their filing,

22 but I am not aware that they grossed up.

23      Q.   Okay.  Now, looking at page 6 of your

24 surrebuttal testimony, you discuss the fact that when

25 interest at weighted averaged costs of capital is
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1 applied to cash working capital in ComEd's purchased

2 electricity adjustment rider, that that cost of capital

3 grossed up for income taxes and this is a better example

4 of what should be done.  Is that your testimony?

5      A.   I'm sorry?  Can you point me to the line,

6 please?

7      Q.   Approximately, line 121.

8      A.   I'm sorry.  121 of my surrebuttal?

9      Q.   Yes.

10      A.   Yeah.  I'm sorry.  I'm confused on the

11 question.

12      Q.   All right.  Do you recall in your rebuttal

13 testimony, I believe -- actually, your surrebuttal

14 testimony when you were discussing Mr. Bridal's

15 reconciliation interest gross-up adjustment that

16 believe, in your opinion, that the use of gross-up or

17 weighted -- on weighted average costs of capital and

18 purchased energy adjustment costs is the more

19 appropriate comparison.  Do you recall that testimony?

20      A.   I do.  I believe it's at line 178 of my

21 surrebuttal.

22      Q.   And would you agree the reconciliation process

23 for the purchased electricity rider is for a

24 reconciliation of the full -- is not for a

25 reconciliation of the full distribution revenue
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1 requirement?  Would you agree?

2      A.   Yes, I would agree the purchased energy

3 adjustment rider does not reconcile the full delivery

4 revenue requirement.

5      Q.   And if you are aware, is the purchased energy

6 rider adjustment process a product of a statute that

7 defines precisely what interest rate is to be applied to

8 over- or under-recovered balances, if you know?

9      A.   I don't recall if that rider is a result of

10 legislation or not.

11      Q.   Line 188 of your surrebuttal testimony, you're

12 talking about the cost of capital being grossed up for

13 taxes there.  Do you see that?

14      A.   I do.

15      Q.   And you state that it is to account for the

16 full cost of financing the lag or lead on recovery of

17 ComEd's net revenue requirement.  Do you see that

18 testimony?

19      A.   I believe it's -- I believe it says there, the

20 cost of capital is grossed up for taxes to account for

21 the full cost of financing the lead or leg -- leg or

22 lead related to procuring electricity supply for ComEd

23 customers.

24      Q.   Okay.  And is it your understanding or, if you

25 know, whether the Commission ever received testimony or
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1 held a hearing on whether or not the return allowed on

2 purchased energy cash working capital for that rider

3 that you're discussing there should be factored up for

4 income taxes?

5      A.   I haven't been involved in the prior

6 proceedings so I can't speak to that.

7      Q.   All right.  I would like to turn your

8 attention to your disagreement with the proposed

9 adjustments made for accumulated deferred income taxes.

10 And first, I would like you to turn to page 10 of your

11 surrebuttal.  At line 207, you state that -- you note

12 that Staff disagrees with the AG and CCIs proposed

13 adjustment.  And CCIs is a reference to Mr. Gorman's

14 proposed adjustment.  Do you see that?

15      A.   I do.

16      Q.   Now, do you know whether or not Mr. Brosch has

17 a primary and a secondary recommendation with regard to

18 the ADIT balances associated with the reconciliation

19 process?

20      A.   Yes.  I believe he does have two proposals.

21      Q.   And would you agree that Mr. Kahle's rebuttal,

22 which you reference at line 208, is concerned with only

23 Mr. Brosch's alternative recommendation that would be

24 affected only if his primary recommendation related to

25 accumulated deferred income tax recognition is not
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1 approved?  And if you would like a copy of Mr. Kahle's

2 testimony to refresh recollection, I do have a copy of

3 that.

4      A.   That would be helpful.

5                     (Document tendered.)

6 BY THE WITNESS:

7      A.   Thank you.

8      MS. LUSSON:  Your Honor, I won't mark this as an

9 exhibit because this will be, I'm presuming, introduced

10 by Staff when they produce Mr. Khale.

11 BY MS. LUSSON:

12      Q.   If you would like to take a moment to review

13 Mr. Khale's testimony.  And, again, my question is,

14 would you agree that Mr. Khale's rebuttal testimony

15 related to Mr. Brosch's accumulated deferred income tax

16 adjustment discusses Mr. Brosch's alternative

17 recommendation only?

18      A.   Yes.  Here, it does discuss the alternative

19 proposal.

20      Q.   And would you agree that Mr. Kahle is silent

21 on Mr. Brosch's primary recommendation?

22      A.   Based on what I've read here, yes.

23      Q.   Thank you.  Now, if you could turn to page

24 12 of your surrebuttal testimony, I want to ask you a

25 series of questions beginning with your discussion at
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1 lines 225 and also related to the chart you provide at

2 the top of page 12, if you want to reference that

3 testimony.

4      A.   Okay.

5      Q.   So at line 249, you state that, ComEd does not

6 receive a cash benefit related to the accumulated

7 deferred income taxes on the reconciliation balance; is

8 that correct?

9      A.   That's correct.

10      Q.   Would you agree that through the

11 reconciliation process, a utility like ComEd could

12 either over- or under-recover its revenue requirement

13 when the reconciliation is performed in a formula rate

14 update docket?

15      A.   Yes.

16      Q.   Now, I would like to explore a hypothetical

17 with you in -- For the first hyp- -- Under my

18 hypothetical, we would have an over-recovery scenario,

19 and I would ask you to assume that the utility actually

20 bills and collects the amount of revenue that was

21 initially authorized under formula rate making, and that

22 the later reconciliation revenue requirement in the

23 formula rate update docket shows that the reconciliation

24 revenue requirement turns out to be lower than that

25 amount so that the utility collects more revenue than
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1 the -- than its actual reconciliation revenue

2 requirement.  Do you follow that?

3      A.   I'm sorry.  I don't.

4      Q.   Okay.  So under my hypothetical, the revenue

5 requirement is set in a prior proceeding.  And when it

6 comes to a reconciliation, the utility actually billed

7 and collected an amount of revenue that was initially

8 authorized under formula rate making, and that the later

9 reconciliation revenue requirement turns out to show

10 that the company's actual revenue requirement for that

11 time period was lower than that amount originally

12 approved, so that they -- there was an over-recovery

13 reconciliation credit, taking out the collar adjustment

14 or anything else, just purely looking at the over- or

15 under-recovery for the actual revenue requirement in a

16 particular year.

17      MR. RIPPIE:  I'm sorry.  I hate to do it, but I

18 object to the question.  The hypothetical has a

19 conclusion in it which I believe to be legally

20 incorrect.  If the hypothetical is simply that there's a

21 negative reconciliation adjustment, that's one thing,

22 but to conclude that the company over-recovered is not

23 accurate because the company refunds that negative

24 reconciliation adjustment.

25      MS. LUSSON:  Okay.  Your Honor, I'll reword the
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1 question.  I was not implying any sort of bad behavior

2 on the company or over-recovery.  I'm just trying to

3 create where, in fact, a reconciliation credit was owed;

4 so that's my hypothetical.

5 BY MS. LUSSON:

6      Q.   Are you with me so far?  I apologize if my

7 hypothetical was awkwardly worded, but you're with me on

8 that?

9      A.   (No verbal response.)

10      Q.   So we're talking about a situation where the

11 actual revenue requirement for the 12-month period being

12 examined in the reconciliation process was lower than

13 what had been approved by the Commission in the prior

14 formula rate case, so that a credit is owed to rate

15 payers.  Okay?

16      A.   Okay.

17      Q.   So if a utility collects more revenue than its

18 actual reconciliation revenue requirement, as under my

19 hypothetical, does the utility have to pay current

20 income taxes on that extra revenue?

21      A.   Yes.

22      Q.   And I think that's -- Strike that.

23           So for this utility with an reconciliation

24 credit owed, what I previously referred to as an

25 over-recovery -- which Mr. Rippie objected to -- so just
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1 so we're clear, if I do use that term again -- would you

2 agree that if the extra revenue above the actual revenue

3 requirement was a thousand dollars, the utility would

4 actually be able to only keep about $600 after income

5 taxes are paid at a rate of 40 percent?

6      A.   I believe that's the net number, yes.

7      Q.   So would you agree that the net additional

8 cash flow in my hypothetical, that it's available to the

9 utility under this scenario, after income taxes are

10 paid, is about 60 percent of the additional revenues

11 that were billed and collected?

12      A.   At the end of the day, yes.

13      Q.   So if we wanted to estimate the amount of

14 incremental investment the utility could avoid by virtue

15 of temporarily earning -- collecting revenues that

16 exceeded its revenue requirement, this incremental

17 reduced investment in cash flow would be about

18 60 percent of the excess revenues; is that correct?

19      MR. RIPPIE:  Can I just please hear that question

20 back?

21 BY MS. LUSSON:

22      Q.   Okay.  If we want to estimate the amount of

23 investment -- incremental investment the utility could

24 avoid by a virtue of temporarily collecting more

25 revenues than its actual revenue requirement, this
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1 incremental reduced investment in cash flow would be

2 about 60 percent of the excess revenues?

3      MR. RIPPIE:  I object to the form of the question.

4 Neither the hypothetical nor the witness's testimony

5 said anything about incremental investment.

6      MS. LUSSON:  I'll reword it, your Honor.

7 BY MS. LUSSON:

8      Q.   Let's go back to the prior question.  So we've

9 agreed that the net additional cash flow that is

10 available to the utility under the scenario, again,

11 where the company owes rate payers money because the

12 revenues collected exceeded its actual revenue

13 requirement, after income taxes are paid, is about

14 60 percent of the additional revenues that were billed

15 and collected, correct?

16      A.   Yes.  At the end of the day, that's correct.

17      Q.   Now, the situation that we find ourselves in

18 this docket is where ComEd states that in this case, the

19 Company's 2012 revenue requirement was under-recovered,

20 that is, it received less revenues in 2012 that its

21 actual revenue requirement by, as I understand the

22 Company's position to be, 132 million, is that correct,

23 referencing your line before --

24      A.   That's what was recorded at the end of 2012,

25 yes.
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1      Q.   Now, if ComEd had exactly recovered its

2 revenue requirement in 2012, the Company would have

3 collected $132 million of additional revenues, correct?

4      A.   If it had recovered its full revenue

5 requirement with no reconciliation?

6      Q.   Yes.

7      A.   Then yes.

8      Q.   Okay.  And if ComEd had collected 132 million

9 in additional revenues, would income taxes have been

10 owed on those additional revenues?

11      A.   Yes, but, again, there's no reconciliation.

12      Q.   Would you agree that since ComEd did not

13 collect the $132 million in cash that it says it is owed

14 because of the actual revenue requirement in 2012, that

15 it avoided paying income taxes on this amount in cash?

16      A.   What do you mean by, avoided paying income

17 taxes?

18      Q.   Well, since it didn't recover the 132 million,

19 it doesn't have to pay taxes on that 132 million,

20 correct?

21      A.   No.  It will pay income taxes on that

22 132 million when it collects it.

23      Q.   Right, when it collects it.  But in 2012,

24 since it didn't collect that $132 million, at least at

25 that point it hadn't yet paid any income taxes on it,
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1 correct?

2      A.   That's correct, but that didn't change the

3 income taxes that ComEd had to pay for that year.

4      Q.   And when ComEd does collect the $132 million

5 or whatever the ICC approved amount in this case, will

6 the Company need to pay income taxes on it?

7      A.   Yes, it will.

8      Q.   And when revenues are temporarily foregone due

9 to an under-recovery of the Company's revenue

10 requirement, would you agree that payment of taxes on

11 those revenues is also temporarily avoided?

12      A.   I wouldn't say it's avoided.  I would say it's

13 deferred.

14      Q.   It's deferred?  But it doesn't actually occur

15 then in that year?

16      A.   The payment of income taxes?

17      Q.   Yes.

18      A.   No, but, again, it doesn't change the income

19 taxes that ComEd owes for that year.

20      Q.   And as you say, it's deferred?

21      A.   Correct.

22      Q.   Okay.  Again, let's focus on your chart and

23 your example that begins at line 231.  Now, just to be

24 clear, under the column that says, ComEd Formula, does

25 the Company believe that it is entitled to a total net
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1 amount recovered on line 9 of $66 or instead, does the

2 Company believe that it's entitled to recover the

3 $100 on line 3 plus the $10 on line 4, for a total of

4 $110?

5      A.   ComEd believes that the amount that should be

6 included in the revenue requirement, in this example,

7 would be $110 --

8      Q.   Okay.

9      A.   -- such that when income taxes are applied,

10 its net recovery is $66.

11      Q.   So under your example, you're assuming that

12 the Company under-recovered its revenue requirement by

13 $100; is that right?

14      A.   Correct.

15      Q.   So let's talk about what would have happened

16 if ComEd had fully recovered its revenue requirement in

17 that year.  Would you agree that the Company would have

18 collected $100 more in revenue?

19      A.   When?

20      Q.   In that year that is being examined here.

21 This is your hypothetical.

22      A.   Yes.  If the -- If the Company had recovered

23 that $100 in the current year, there would be no

24 reconciliation so yes, that they would have recovered

25 that in the current year.
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1      Q.   Okay.  And, again, under that hypothetical,

2 the additional $100 in revenues would have been subject

3 to income taxes at 40 percent increasing income tax

4 expenses by $40 under your example; is that right?

5      A.   That's correct.

6      Q.   So is it correct that ComEd would have had

7 after-cash -- tax cash income in 2012 of $60, assuming

8 it had fully recovered its revenue requirement and paid

9 income taxes on that full recovery of revenues?

10      A.   Yes, but, again, there would be no

11 reconciliation.

12      Q.   Do you dispute Mr. Brosch's conclusion that

13 net cash flow ComEd was deprived of in 2012, in your

14 example here, was $100 of revenue under-recovery offset

15 by the delayed payment of income taxes on that

16 100 dollar of revenues for a net cash flow reduction of

17 $60?

18      A.   I'm sorry.  Can you repeat the question,

19 please.

20      Q.   Do you dispute Mr. Brosch's conclusion that

21 the net cash flow ComEd was deprived of in 2012, under

22 your hypothetical, was $100 of revenue under-recovery

23 offset by the delayed payment of income taxes on that

24 $100 of revenues for a net cash flow reduction of $60?

25      A.   Yes.
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1      Q.   Okay.  If we could focus on the difference in

2 the two bottom line amounts shown on your total net

3 amount recovered line where $66 differs from $64 by $2,

4 do you see that?

5      A.   I do.

6      Q.   Can we agree that this difference of $2 is

7 caused by income taxes at 40 percent times the

8 difference on the line 6 amount of interest at either

9 10 -- or $10 or $6 in the two columns?

10      A.   Yes, I think that's correct.

11      Q.   And is this $2 of difference what you're

12 talking about at line 244 of your testimony where you

13 state that, after taxes, ComEd would be left only with

14 $64 in the second column under the AG's approach, but

15 would have $66 under ComEd's approach?

16      A.   At line 244, I just speak to the 64 million --

17 I'm sorry -- the $64 in that example.

18      Q.   Okay.  So -- But let's talk about the 2-dollar

19 difference, referencing, again, the chart.  Is that

20 2-dollar difference that you're talking about where you

21 state that, after taxes ComEd would be left with only

22 $64 in the second column under the AG's approach, but

23 would have 66 under ComEd's approach, is that the

24 2-dollar difference that you're talking about?

25      A.   I'm sorry.  When you say the $2 that I'm
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1 talking about, where are you referring?

2      Q.   Well, your -- As I understand your chart,

3 you're trying to show that there's an under-recovery

4 difference according to the AG approach versus the ComEd

5 approach?

6      A.   That's right.

7      Q.   And that difference appears to be between

8 $66 and $64.  Is that 2-dollar difference related to

9 your position that after taxes ComEd would be left with

10 only $64 under the AG approach versus 66 under ComEd's

11 approach?

12      A.   That's correct.

13      Q.   Now, if you disagree with Mr. Brosch and

14 believe that ComEd is entitled to collect four more

15 dollars of interest at lines 4 and 6, why is the bottom

16 line difference not $4 instead of $2?

17      A.   Because the tax impact is put on that

18 difference.  So what I understand Mr. Brosch to be

19 saying is, ultimately ComEd has a net under-recovery at

20 the end of the day of $60 and should be getting interest

21 on that $60 in this example at 10 percent; so ComEd

22 should recover $66.

23           Under my example, and the way this runs

24 through the current ComEd formula, at the end of the

25 day, we recover $66.
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1      Q.   So I think you stated in answer -- in answer

2 to my question as to why it's 4 -- not 4 instead of 2,

3 it's because of the income tax on the interest?  Is that

4 the reason why it's not $4 instead of $2?

5      A.   It would be the difference in the interest

6 that's calculated as well as the income taxes on that

7 interest.

8      Q.   And is the interest amount on line 6 of your

9 table intended to represent cash revenues being

10 collected as interest by ComEd?

11      A.   Cash revenues collected when?

12      Q.   During this time period that this represents.

13      A.   So that interest at line 6 is intended to

14 represent the full amount of interest ComEd would

15 receive on its under-recovery of the $100.

16      Q.   And I think you've agreed that ComEd has

17 assumed to finance the reconciliation balance with

18 interest at the Company's weighted average cost of

19 capital; is that right?

20      A.   I'm sorry.  Can you repeat that one more time?

21      Q.   ComEd has assumed to finance the

22 reconciliation balance in this docket with interest at

23 the Company's weighted average cost of capital, correct,

24 in this case?

25      A.   In this case, yes.
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1      Q.   And when ComEd actually finances the

2 reconciliation balance, while it's waiting for a

3 recovery of that balance, is it correct that the Company

4 would incur some additional interest expense on any debt

5 used for such financing?

6      A.   It would depend on how that reconciliation was

7 financed.

8      Q.   If any incremental debt financing was required

9 due to a reconciliation under-recovery of revenues,

10 would issuing that debt caused ComEd to incur some

11 incremental interest expense?

12      A.   Again, it would depend on how it's financed.

13 And I suppose in your example, if that were a

14 hypothetical example, that would be true.

15      Q.   And would you agree that interest expense is

16 generally deductible for income tax purposes?

17      A.   That's my understanding.

18      Q.   Does your illustration assume that ComEd

19 incurs any incremental income tax deductible interest

20 expense in connection with financing the reconciliation

21 balance while the Company is waiting for recovery?

22      A.   I'm sorry.  I don't understand your question.

23      Q.   Does your illustration here in the chart at

24 the top of page 12, assume that ComEd incurs any kind of

25 incremental income tax deductible interest expense in
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1 connection with financing the reconciliation balance

2 while the Company is waiting for recovery?

3      A.   This example assumes that the reconciliation

4 balance is financed with the weighted average cost of

5 capital, so I don't assume that there's any more debt

6 than equity.  It's just the weighted average cost of

7 capital.

8      Q.   Okay.  So it makes no -- It does not assume

9 then that debt was issued and that there was an

10 interest -- that there was interest expense associated

11 with issuing that debt to finance the reconciliation

12 balance?

13      A.   It does not make that simple -- that simple

14 assumption.  It just assumes that we're financing using

15 the weighted average cost of capital.

16      Q.   Okay.  Now, in my hypothetical, what if we

17 assume that the interest income amount on line 6 was

18 exactly offset by incremental interest expense in the

19 same amount and the ADIT interest expense is tax

20 deductible -- and that's the hypothetical -- would the

21 taxable income be $100 in both columns and the income

22 tax expense be $40 in both columns?

23      A.   Regardless of the interest expense, in this

24 hypothetical --

25      Q.   Okay.  I'm sorry.  Go ahead.
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1      A.   -- the reconciliation balance is $100.

2      Q.   And in my -- the question that I posed, then

3 would income tax expense be $40 in both columns?

4      A.   (No verbal response.)

5      Q.   Again, we're assuming that the interest amount

6 on line 6 was exactly offset by incremental interest

7 expense in the same amount and the ADIT interest expense

8 is tax deductible?

9      A.   I don't understand what you mean by offset by

10 interest expense.  In this example, when ComEd

11 under-recovers the $100, and it calculates the interest,

12 that is all recorded on ComEd's books as revenue.  And

13 so the income tax impact is based on that revenue

14 number.

15      Q.   Okay.  So if we assumed, again, in my

16 hypothetical, that the interest income on line 6 was

17 exactly offset by incremental interest expense in the

18 same amount and the ADIT interest expense is tax

19 deductible, would the income -- taxable income be --

20 still be $100 in both columns and income tax expense be

21 $40 in both columns, under that type hypothetical?

22      A.   Well, I think what you're saying in that

23 hypothetical is you would effectively eliminate this

24 interest of $10 in the ComEd column, and then the

25 reconciliation would be $100.  Calculating a 40 percent
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1 tax rate on that 100, the math does get you $60;

2 however, I'm not sure of a situation where interest

3 expense would offset this interest calculated on the

4 reconciliation balance.

5      Q.   Would you agree with me that your illustration

6 on page 12 shows the effects of paying income taxes on

7 the interest amount on line 6 which translates into a

8 bottom line difference of $2?

9      A.   I agree.

10      Q.   And would you agree with me that if we assume

11 all of the interest income on line 6, is fully offset by

12 tax deductible interest expense, that there would be no

13 bottom line difference in your illustration?

14      A.   Assuming that hypothetical that in both cases,

15 in both columns that interest was offset by interest

16 expense, then the sheer math would tell you that you get

17 the same number; however, again, I'm not clear on where

18 that hypothetical would ever happen.

19      Q.   Okay.  Now, I would like to ask you some

20 questions about your employee stock purchase plan

21 dispute with Mr. Brosch.

22           If you could turn to page 20 of your

23 surrebuttal on line 415.  Now, as I understand your

24 testimony, you are arguing for a full recovery from rate

25 payers of ComEd's administrative and general expense
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1 arising from the employee stock ownership program or

2 ESPP; is that correct?

3      A.   We are asking for the jurisdictional amount of

4 that, yes.

5      Q.   And to be clear, there is no ComEd stock

6 available for sale to employees, right?  It's Exelon

7 stock; is that right?

8      A.   That's correct.

9      Q.   And Exelon is ComEd's parent company, correct?

10      A.   That's correct.

11      Q.   And the cost of that discounted price -- the

12 discounted stock price that's part of this employee

13 stock purchase plan program are allocated to ComEd and

14 included in 2012 administrative and general expense,

15 correct?

16      A.   The cost related to ComEd employees is

17 included in ComEd's administrative and general, yes.

18      Q.   Now, starting at line 423, you appear to be

19 taking the position that ComEd has incurred additional

20 income taxes in 2012 and for prior tax years.  They have

21 also been included in the Company's revenue requirement.

22 Do you see that?

23      A.   I'm sorry.  Can you repeat your question,

24 please.

25      Q.   Beginning at line 423, you discuss income
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1 taxes expense related to ComEd's employee stock purchase

2 plan program.  Do you see?

3      A.   I do.

4      Q.   And so you're stating that ComEd has incurred

5 additional income taxes in 2012 associated with that

6 plan, that you seek recovery of that?

7      A.   That's correct.

8      Q.   Now, would you agree that the value of this

9 employee benefit is tied directly to the market value of

10 Exelon shares in the market?

11      A.   I believe the calculation of that discount

12 does use the market value of the Exelon stock; however,

13 this is not stock-based compensation.

14      Q.   Okay.  But the value of the employee benefit,

15 from the employee's perspective, is tied to the market,

16 would you agree?

17      A.   Again, that discount is calculated using the

18 market.

19      Q.   Would you agree that the discount on Exelon

20 stock, that's recorded as an expense by ComEd, tends to

21 encourage ComEd employees to participate in the employee

22 stock purchase plan and increase their ownership of

23 Exelon shares?

24      A.   There are many people that do participate in

25 this plan and many that don't.  I can't speculate on why
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1 they choose to participate or not.

2      Q.   But would you agree that the decision whether

3 to participate in the program is impacted by the fact

4 that ComEd provides a discount for the stock as compared

5 to purchasing the stock without a discount?  Would you

6 imagine that that would impact the level of

7 participation?

8      A.   Again, I can't speculate on why an employee

9 would invest in Exelon stock versus any other stock.

10      Q.   Well, let me ask it this way:  Would you agree

11 that that's an incentive for an employee to purchase,

12 that is, the discount?  That's seen as a benefit to the

13 employee, isn't it?

14      A.   I think I would term it as a consideration.

15      Q.   Okay.  Now, at line 21 -- I'm sorry -- line

16 435, on page 21, you reference ComEd's response to AG

17 data request 6.03.  Do you see that?

18      A.   I do.

19      Q.   Now, that data request response was filed on

20 e-docket as AG Exhibit 3.4 as part of an errata to

21 Mr. Brosch's testimony.  And are you familiar with that

22 response?

23      A.   I'm not familiar that that data request was

24 out there.  I couldn't speak exactly to what we said

25 about.
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1      Q.   Let me ask you a couple questions about it.

2      MS. LUSSON:  And I'll just, your Honors, show

3 Ms. Brinkman a copy of the Company's response to AG

4 6.03, which is AG Exhibit 3.4, just for -- to refresh

5 your recollection.

6                     (Document tendered.)

7 BY MS. LUSSON:

8      Q.   And, Ms. Brinkman, is that the response you're

9 referring to there?

10      A.   It is.

11      Q.   Now, you underscore the sentence that, Exelon

12 pays the dividend, therefore, Exelon gets the tax

13 deduction.  Do you see that?

14      A.   I do.

15      Q.   Now, part A of the response to AG 6.03 refers

16 to dividends paid on shares of Exelon stock held in its

17 401(k).  Do you see that?

18      A.   I do.

19      Q.   Does Exelon Corporation have a single

20 corporate 401(k) account in its own name or should this

21 response instead refer to the account held for the

22 benefit of employees among all the Exelon business

23 units?

24      A.   I'm sorry.  I don't understand your question.

25      Q.   Well, is the 401(k) account referred to there
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1 held by Exelon or for just ComEd employees, or is it for

2 all of the employees of its affiliated companies, if you

3 know?

4      A.   I don't know whether it's one account or

5 multiple.

6      Q.   And do you know if Internal Revenue Code

7 Section 404(K) that is referenced in part A of this

8 question provides for a deduction on a corporate income

9 tax return for dividends paid on employee stock

10 ownership plans, if you know?

11      A.   I don't know specifically that IRC section.

12      Q.   Do you know generally if that is the case,

13 that is, if the tax code permits a deduction on a

14 corporate income tax return for dividends paid on

15 employee stock ownership plans?

16      A.   I don't know, in general.

17      Q.   Now, part B of that response quantifies the

18 Exelon dividends paid deduction for the last three

19 years.  Do you see that?

20      A.   I do.

21      Q.   And according to part B, Exelon does not

22 further break down its deduction among various business

23 units such as ComEd, PECO, P E C O, or Constellation; is

24 that right?

25      A.   Yeah.  I believe it says here, Exelon does not
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1 further break down that income tax deduction by any of

2 the business units because Exelon pays the dividend to

3 that fund.

4      Q.   And in part C, the response states that, only

5 the corporation paying the dividend is entitled to a

6 deduction and as such, none of Exelon's underlying

7 business units may claim or are entitled to share in

8 Exelon Corporation's tax deduction.  Is that your

9 testimony there?

10      A.   That's the response to this data request, yes.

11      Q.   Okay.  And was that response prepared by you

12 or under your supervision?

13      A.   Under my supervision.

14      Q.   And is it correct that ComEd does not file its

15 own federal income tax return and does not directly pay

16 any federal income taxes, but instead is conclude -- is

17 included as part of consolidated group income tax return

18 that's filed by Exelon Corporation?

19      A.   I'm sorry.  Can you point me to where I

20 discuss that in my testimony?

21      Q.   I'm --

22      MR. RIPPIE:  It also is a compound question.

23 BY MS. LUSSON:

24      Q.   I'm asking you, is it correct -- So you're

25 testifying about income tax impacts and what should
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1 be -- should and should not be recoverable in terms of

2 what ComEd has allocated from the parent company.  And

3 my question is, is it correct that ComEd does not in and

4 of itself pay income taxes -- federal income -- doesn't

5 file its own federal income tax return -- but it does

6 not pay any federal income taxes directly, but instead

7 is included as part of a consolidated group income tax

8 return that's filed by Exelon?

9      MR. RIPPIE:  I would ask that -- I object to the

10 question on the grounds that it's compound.  I would ask

11 you to please break up, filing the --

12 BY MS. LUSSON:

13      Q.   Okay.  Is it correct ComEd does not its own

14 federal income tax return?

15      A.   I'm not part of the filing so I'm not certain

16 whether we file a ComEd tax return or just the

17 consolidated return.

18      Q.   And do you know if ComEd directly pays any

19 federal income taxes or rather pays it as part of a

20 consolidated group filing?

21      A.   I'm not certain.

22      Q.   So you're not certain if ComEd's revenue

23 requirement in this docket contains income tax expenses

24 paid by -- based upon ComEd's calculated taxable income

25 or whether is performed under some consolidated
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1 filing -- income tax filing or whether it's actually

2 done by the ComEd itself?

3      MR. RIPPIE:  Same objection.

4      MS. LUSSON:  Your Honor, I think it was not a

5 compound question.

6      MR. RIPPIE:  Well, no.  You started asking about

7 the filing and you ended up asking -- rather you started

8 asking about payment and you ended up as asking about

9 filing.

10           She's indicated she doesn't know whether it's

11 a consolidated return filing or not, but I'm not

12 objecting to you being able to ask the question, but you

13 started out asking about payment and you ended up asking

14 about filing, which are two different things.

15 BY MS. LUSSON:

16      Q.   All right.  Let me ask you this:  In the

17 interest of time, rather than have the court reporter

18 read it back, do you know if ComEd's revenue requirement

19 in this docket contains income tax expenses based on

20 ComEd's calculated taxable income?

21      A.   It would include income tax expenses based on

22 ComEd's taxable income.

23      Q.   But you don't know if that taxable income

24 comes as a result of a consolidated parent company

25 filing or whether ComEd files its own and that amount
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1 would be then charged to the revenue requirement?

2      A.   I do not know that.  Again, I'm not involved

3 in the filings.

4      Q.   The next area I would like to talk about or

5 discuss with you is the objection to Mr. Efron's rate

6 base adjustment for the return on equity collar

7 calculation made by ComEd.

8      MR. RIPPIE:  If I can just interject for a moment,

9 since we're already a bit over the estimate, if this is

10 going to be a while, would you mind if we take a break?

11      MS. LUSSON:  I have -- I think this will go pretty

12 quickly.

13      MR. RIPPIE:  Okay.

14 BY MS. LUSSON:

15      Q.   If you could refer to your surrebuttal at

16 page 5, line -- specifically your discussion at lines

17 88 through 91 there, do you see that?

18      A.   I do.

19      Q.   Now, you state at lines 90 through 91 that the

20 AG proposal to use the average rate base remains a

21 mismatched calculation applying year-end capital

22 structure ratios to an average rate base.  Is that your

23 testimony?

24      A.   Yes.

25      Q.   And in the present case, the Company uses a
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1 capital structure as of the end of 2012, correct?

2      A.   That's correct.

3      Q.   Would you agree that for the purpose of

4 establishing the rates that go into effect on January 1,

5 2014, that that capital structure is applied to a rate

6 base that includes estimated 2013 plant additions?

7      A.   Can you repeat the question, please.

8      Q.   Sure.  Would you agree that for purposes of

9 establishing the rates that go into effect on

10 January 1st, 2014, that that capital structure is

11 applied to a rate base that includes estimated

12 2013 plant additions?

13      A.   That's correct.

14      Q.   Now, with respect to the dispute about billing

15 determinants, please turn to page 22 of your testimony.

16 Now, as I understand your position, you argue that

17 when -- say, for example, at lines 466 through 467 that

18 when billing determinants are inflated, utilities cannot

19 recover the revenue requirement approved by the

20 Commission.  That's your position?

21      A.   That's correct.

22      Q.   And would you agree that in Docket 11-0721,

23 the revenue requirement for 2012 was established, not

24 the actual, but the one based on that formula rate case?

25      A.   That's correct.
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1      Q.   And in that case, the Commission accepted the

2 AG's proposal to modify the billing determinants for

3 some customer classes to recognize customer growth based

4 on the number of customers at year end 2012; is that

5 right?

6      A.   I'm sorry.  Can you repeat that, please.

7      Q.   Would you agree that in that case, the

8 Commission accepted the AG's proposal to modify the

9 billing determinants for some customer classes to

10 recognize customer growth based on the number of

11 customers at year end 2012?

12      A.   And you're speaking of the 11-0721 docket?

13      Q.   Correct.

14      A.   I don't recall that that docket discussed the

15 number of customers at the end of 2012.  It may have

16 been 2011, but, again, I wasn't involved in that docket

17 so I can't be sure.

18      Q.   Okay.  Fair enough.  Now, do you have with you

19 a copy of Exhibit 3.18, Schedule FRA-1?

20      A.   I do not.

21      Q.   Okay.

22                     (Brief pause.)

23      MS. LUSSON:  Well, this, again, isn't to be placed

24 on the record, your Honor.  I'm just showing this to the

25 witness to refresh her recollection.
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1                    (Document tendered.)

2 BY MS. LUSSON:

3      Q.   Now, according to the Company's -- Are you

4 familiar with that formula rate, Schedule A-1?

5      A.   I'm generally familiar.  I believe this was

6 attached to Mr. Fruehe's testimony.

7      Q.   Correct.  Now, according to that schedule, in

8 2012, the Company earned a return on equity of

9 9.35 percent; is that right?

10      A.   That's correct.

11      Q.   Now, that amount exceeded not only the

12 authorized return on equity of 8.72 percent but also the

13 collar limit of 9.22 percent, is that correct, according

14 to this schedule?

15      A.   According to this schedule, yes.

16      Q.   And, again, that's based on the Company's own

17 calculation, not any calculation done by any other

18 witness; is that right?

19      A.   Which calculation are you referring to?

20      Q.   The calculations that appears on FRA-1?

21      A.   These calculations are a product of the

22 Commission-approved formula.

23      Q.   Okay.  But this was an exhibit sponsored by

24 ComEd attached to Mr. Fruehe's testimony, correct?

25      A.   That's correct.
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1      Q.   So in 2012, the Company not only recovered the

2 revenue requirement approved by the Commission but

3 actually earned in excess of its authorized return on

4 equity according to this schedule, would you agree?

5      A.   No.

6      Q.   All right.  For purposes of the collar

7 calculation, as recorded, that the Company earned a

8 9.35 percent return on equity, that the maximum allowed

9 return on equity was 9.22 percent and the minimum

10 allowed return on equity was 8.22 percent, given those

11 statistics that the 9.35 percent exceeded the collar

12 upper limit, would you agree?

13      A.   I agree.

14      Q.   So with respect to that -- I'm not talking

15 about the actual revenue requirement -- the Company not

16 only earned the amount authorized by the Commission when

17 it set its initial revenue requirement but actually

18 earned in excess of that initial revenue requirement,

19 according to this?

20      A.   I can't speak to what it earned on the initial

21 revenue requirement because that was in a prior case.

22 As is shown on this schedule in this case, this earned

23 ROE does fall outside the collar band.

24      Q.   Okay.  So when you disagreed with me in that

25 previous question, you were -- is it -- were you
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1 thinking -- was your disagreement based on the fact that

2 it wasn't reflective of the Company's actual revenue

3 requirement?  Is that why you disagreed with my

4 statement that the Company recovered its rev- --

5 actually recovered its revenue requirement?  Is that why

6 you disagreed with that question?

7      A.   If I recall your question, you stated that the

8 company recovered its 2012 revenue requirement, and I

9 disagree with that by the reconciliation amount that's

10 included here.

11      Q.   Okay.  So for purposes of my question, though,

12 this is referring to the initial revenue requirement set

13 in Docket 12-0321.  So based on knowing that and based

14 on the information provided in FRA-1, the Company not

15 only recovered the revenue requirement established by

16 the Commission in 12-0321 but actually earned -- again,

17 looking at the amount authorized in that case -- earned

18 in excess of its authorized return on equity?

19      A.   I'm sorry.  Your question is confusing me.

20 I'm not following you.

21      Q.   My question goes to what was established in

22 Docket 12-0321.  Okay?  So a revenue requirement was

23 set.  And according to Schedule FRA-1, the Company --

24 again, not looking at the reconciliation amount --

25 actual amount, the Company achieved that revenue
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1 requirement set in 12-0321 and then some, correct?

2      A.   I don't agree.

3      Q.   You agree that in 2012, the Company earned in

4 excess of its authorized return on equity hence a collar

5 adjustment as reflected in this schedule?

6      A.   Based on this schedule, yes.

7      Q.   Okay.  So with regard to 2012, ultimately, the

8 only effect of the Commission's adjustment to billing

9 determinants was to reduce the amount of the ROE collar

10 adjustment that the Company had to credit to customers,

11 correct?

12      MR. RIPPIE:  You said both ultimately and in 2012.

13 Which -- I object to the form of the question.  Do you

14 mean as of 2012 or do you mean ultimately?

15      MS. LUSSON:  With regard to 2012 --

16      MR. RIPPIE:  Okay.

17      MS. LUSSON:  -- taking out the word ultimately.

18      MR. RIPPIE:  Thank you.

19 BY THE WITNESS:

20      A.   I'm sorry.  Can you repeat that?

21      Q.   Sure.  With regard to 2012, the only effect of

22 the Commission's adjustment to billing determinants was

23 to reduce the amount of the ROE collar adjustment that

24 the Company had to credit to customers, would you agree?

25      A.   I don't know if that's true or not.
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1      Q.   Would you agree that absent the adjustment to

2 billing determinants, the Company's 2012 rates and

3 revenues would have been higher and the reported return

4 on equity would have been higher?

5      A.   I don't know.

6      Q.   Finally, can you refer to your surrebuttal

7 testimony at page 26.  At lines 553 through 555, you

8 state that Mr. Efron's claim that per kilowatt usage is

9 growing overall is wrong and that Mr. Efron's

10 extrapolation uses only four months of data and one year

11 over year comparison.  Do you see that?

12      A.   I do.

13      Q.   Would you agree that the customer growth

14 factors presented by both Mr. Efron and Staff witness

15 Johnson were based on the first four months of

16 2013 compared to the first four months of 2012?

17      A.   I recall that in Mr. Efron's exhibit.  I don't

18 recall in Mr. Johnson's.

19      Q.   Let me refresh your recollection here.

20                     (Document tendered.)

21 BY MS. LUSSON:

22      Q.   Just to refresh your recollection, I'm showing

23 you a copy of Mr. Johnson's -- I believe this is his

24 direct testimony and attached to that testimony is Staff

25 Exhibit 5.1, which is the Company's response to
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1 Mr. Johnson's data request 2.01, and there's a four-page

2 response to that.  Can you take a look at that?

3      A.   Okay.

4      Q.   Now, would you agree that looking at that

5 page 3 of that response, that the -- this was the

6 Company's response to Mr. Johnson's data request -- that

7 the Company -- that the customer growth factors

8 presented by both Mr. Efron and Mr. Johnson were based

9 on the first four months of 2013 compared to the first

10 four months of 2012 based on the data supplied by the

11 company?

12      A.   Well, this is a data request answered by ComEd

13 to the ICC staff.  It includes data from January of

14 2012 to April of 2013.  Now, there are a couple of

15 growth factors just related to the number of customers

16 on here that reflect the year to date, April 2012 and

17 April 2013, numbers.

18      Q.   Right.  So that's a comparison of January

19 through April of 2012 with January through April

20 of 2013, correct?

21      A.   That's correct.

22      Q.   You don't dispute that the use per residential

23 customer in the first four months of 2013 was

24 0.82 percent greater than in the corresponding period of

25 2012, based on that information, do you, that
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1 mathematical calculation?

2      A.   I'm sorry.  Did you say the use per customer?

3      Q.   Yes.

4      A.   This a calculation --

5      Q.   I'm sorry.  The -- The customer growth rate.

6      A.   Based on the number of customers, yes, the

7 growth rate, just for those four periods, for small

8 commercial says .09 percent.

9      Q.   Okay.  I may be done.  I just want to double

10 check one thing.

11                     (Brief pause.)

12 BY MS. LUSSON:

13      Q.   So do you have any dispute with the

14 0.82 percent figure in Mr. Efron's testimony wherein he

15 calculates the use per residential customer in the first

16 four months of 2013 was 0.82 percent greater than in the

17 corresponding period of 2012?  I understand you have a

18 dispute with the overall methodology, but do you have

19 any dispute with that math?

20      A.   I vaguely recall the .82 percent, but I would

21 need to look at it again.

22      Q.   Subject to check, do you have a disagreement

23 with that?

24      A.   Subject to check, no; but, again, that was for

25 a four-month period not an entire year.
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1      Q.   Correct.

2      A.   Okay.

3      MS. LUSSON:  Thank you, Ms. Brinkman.

4           That's all the questions I have.  And I would

5 move for the admission of AG Cross Exhibit 1, which was

6 the Company's response to AG 6.07.

7      MR. RIPPIE:  And just for the record, your Honors,

8 I would note that that response contains an objection,

9 which is substantively similar to the objection which I

10 made orally earlier preserving the issue of whether or

11 not it's appropriate to address rate formula changes in

12 this docket as well as certain other objections.

13      JUDGE DOLAN:  All right.  Subject to that

14 objection, AG Cross Exhibit 1 will be admitted into the

15 record.

16           We're going to take a quick break here.

17      MR. RIPPIE:  Thank you.

18                     (A short break was had.)

19                   REDIRECT EXAMINATION

20 BY MR. RIPPIE:

21      Q.   Ms. Brinkman, if I could first ask you to turn

22 to your surrebuttal testimony, Exhibit 17, at page 8,

23 around line 155, do you recall being asked questions

24 about whether or not WACC, has in the past, been grossed

25 up for income taxes?
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1      A.   I do.

2      Q.   How has WACC historically been used in rate

3 making?

4      A.   My understanding is that the WACC is used to

5 represent the cost of financing rate base in the revenue

6 requirement.

7      Q.   And that purpose -- Does that purpose exist

8 both under EIMA and under test rate making -- pre EIMA?

9      A.   My understanding is yes.

10      Q.   Is WACC grossed up for tax costs when used to

11 calculate the earnings on rate base or the cost of rate

12 base?

13      A.   It is.

14      Q.   To your knowledge, has it ever not been

15 grossed up for taxes when used for that purpose?

16      A.   Not to my knowledge.

17      Q.   Are you aware of any utility, including ComEd

18 or Ameren, that doesn't gross it up for that purpose?

19      MS. LUSSON:  Can I ask a clarifying question?  Are

20 you talking about the gross-up on rate base as a whole

21 or the reconciliation balance?

22      MR. RIPPIE:  No, the gross-up -- the grossing up

23 WACC on taxes when it's used to determine the required

24 return on rate base.

25      MS. LUSSON:  Rate base?  Okay.
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1 BY THE WITNESS:

2      A.   I'm sorry.  And so my understanding is that is

3 a standard practice with utilities.

4      Q.   Let's talk for a minute about ADIT.  Do you

5 recall the hypothetical that Ms. Lusson walked you

6 through with regard to your -- the chart that appeared

7 in your surrebuttal testimony at page 12?

8      A.   I do.

9      Q.   In the assumption -- Strike that.

10           Do you recall the assumption that Ms. Lusson

11 asked you to make about interest costs?

12      A.   I do.

13      Q.   What was the -- Strike that.

14           Did that assumption necessarily include an

15 assumption about how the reconciliation balance was

16 financed?

17      A.   My understanding in the hypothetical example

18 is that the assumption was that the reconciliation

19 balance was financed 100 percent with debt; however,

20 that's not the case in the instance of ComEd's formula.

21 It is financed with its current capital structure.

22      Q.   Okay.  I think you got a wee bit ahead of my

23 question, but if the -- if the reconciliation amount or

24 the reconciliation balance of $100 here was not financed

25 100 percent with debt, is there any way that the debt --
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1 that the resulting debt cost could have matched the

2 hypothetical example that Ms. Lusson gave you?

3      A.   No.

4      Q.   And does ComEd finance the reconciliation

5 balance with debt -- 100 percent debt?

6      A.   Not 100 percent.

7      Q.   How does ComEd finance the reconciliation

8 balance?

9      A.   Using its current capital structure.

10      Q.   The cost of which is called what?

11      A.   The weighted average cost of capital.

12      Q.   Now, with respect to the cash benefit, if any,

13 associated with the reconciliation, let's try a

14 simplified hypothetical.  Let's say that you hold a

15 winning lottery ticket, but you defer turning in that

16 winning lottery ticket for one year and therefore, don't

17 collect the $100 million that you would be entitled to

18 collect until a later year.  Just like in the ComEd

19 hypothetical in that case, when do you pay the tax?

20      A.   When I collect the cash.

21      Q.   Does the fact that you haven't paid the tax on

22 the lottery winnings that you don't have yet make you

23 any richer?

24      A.   No.

25      Q.   Can you spend the fact that you haven't yet
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1 paid the tax on the money that you don't have yet?

2      A.   No.

3      Q.   Is the situation any different for ComEd than

4 in the hypothetical that I just gave you?

5      A.   No.

6      Q.   Ms. Lusson asked you a question about billing

7 determinants, I believe -- I may have it in the wrong

8 section, but she asked you whether the rate base to

9 which the year-end capital structure was applied

10 included plant additions.  Does the net rate base at

11 issue, that is, the net rate base that's going to be

12 used to set 2014 rates, include both an initial and a

13 reconciliation revenue requirement?

14      A.   It does.

15      Q.   Which revenue requirement includes projected

16 plant additions?

17      A.   Only the initial.

18      Q.   Does the reconciliation revenue requirement

19 include any plant additions what- -- projected plant

20 additions whatsoever?

21      A.   No.

22      Q.   Does the initial rate base or the initial

23 revenue requirement related to that rate base have any

24 impact on the ultimate recovery of ComEd for any rate

25 year?
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1      A.   No, the reconciliation would.

2      Q.   Do you recall whether Mr. Efron has a position

3 on whether or not that initial revenue requirement has

4 any impact on ComEd's overall recoveries for any rate

5 year?

6      MS. LUSSON:  Could I have the question read back,

7 please.

8 BY MR. RIPPIE:

9      Q.   Do you recall whether Mr. Efron takes a

10 position as to whether or not the initial revenue

11 requirement affects the ultimate recoveries of the

12 company for any rate year?

13      A.   I believe in Mr. Efron's rebuttal testimony,

14 he recognizes that the initial rate year is ultimately

15 reconciled.

16      Q.   Now, at the end of your questioning,

17 Ms. Lusson asked you a series of questions about what

18 happened with the ROE collar after a year in which you

19 testified that the Commission applied an inflated

20 billing determinant.  Is that a fair summary?

21      A.   I think that's right.

22      Q.   In Ms. Lusson's series of questions, has the

23 reconciliation for that year yet occurred and the

24 reconciliation adjustment yet been refunded?

25      A.   No.
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1      Q.   Is it possible after the reconciliation is

2 completed and the ultimate revenues collected, for a

3 utility to earn its allowed revenue requirement if its

4 billing determinants are artificially inflated?

5      MS. LUSSON:  Objection to art- -- the form of the

6 question, artificially inflated.

7      MR. RIPPIE:  I'll delete art- out.  I'll reask it.

8 BY MR. RIPPIE:

9      Q.   If its billing determinants are inflated, is

10 it possible for a utility to earn its allowed revenue

11 requirement after the reconciliation cycle is complete?

12      MS. LUSSON:  Can I -- Objection to the form of the

13 question.  It's unclear what Mr. Rippie means by what

14 he's referring to, by the word inflated.  I think that

15 needs to be clarified so that we can understand the

16 response.

17      MR. RIPPIE:  I mean it in exactly the sense the

18 witness used it, but I'll try to be clearer.

19 BY MR. RIPPIE:

20      Q.   If billing determinants are set higher than

21 they properly should be, is it possible for a utility to

22 recover its revenue requirement at the end of the

23 reconciliation cycle?

24      A.   No.

25      MR. RIPPIE:  That's all I have.
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1           Thank you.

2      MS. LUSSON:  I just have a couple of questions on

3 recross.

4                    RECROSS-EXAMINATION

5 BY MS. LUSSON:

6      Q.   Ms. Brinkman, Mr. Rippie asked you, in his

7 assumption, a question regarding what occurs when ComEd

8 finances its reconciliation balance.  Do you recall

9 those questions?

10      A.   I do.

11      Q.   And I think Mr. Rippie indicated in -- or you

12 indicated in your response that you believed my

13 assumption, my questions, my hypothetical assumed

14 100 percent debt recovery; is that correct -- I'm

15 sorry -- 100 percent debt financing?  Is that your

16 testimony in response to Mr. Rippie's question?

17      A.   That's correct.

18      Q.   So my question is, if any incremental debt

19 financing was required due to reconciliation

20 under-recovery of revenues, no matter the level, whether

21 a small amount, large amount -- whether it's -- matches

22 the capital structure or doesn't match the capital

23 structure, would issuing that debt cause ComEd to incur

24 some incremental interest expense?

25      A.   Depending on the debt, yes.
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1      Q.   And would you agree that that interest

2 expense -- small amount, large amount, matching capital

3 structure or otherwise -- is generally deductible for

4 income tax purposes?

5      A.   Generally, yes.

6      MS. LUSSON:  That's all, your Honor.

7      MR. RIPPIE:  I think I have one.

8      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.

9                   REDIRECT EXAMINATION

10 BY MR. RIPPIE:

11      Q.   And is the fact that the reconciliation

12 balance -- Let me try that again.

13           Is the fact that the reconciliation balance is

14 financed already reflected in the mathematics, in the

15 table at the top of page 12 of your rebuttal testimony?

16      A.   Yes.

17      MR. RIPPIE:  Thank you.

18      JUDGE DOLAN:  Ms. Lusson, anything else?

19      MS. LUSSON:  I don't think so.  Let me just double

20 check something on that table.

21           No, no questions.  Thank you.

22      JUDGE DOLAN:  All right.  Thank you, Ms. Brinkman.

23                     (Witness excused.)

24      MR. RIPPIE:  Do your Honors wish to take a lunch

25 break now or after Mr. Fruehe?
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1      JUDGE DOLAN:  I don't think either one of us care.

2 What -- How does everyone feel?  It's 12:30.  Should we

3 get lunch out of the way?

4      MS. CARDONI:  Staff would prefer to take a break

5 now.

6      JUDGE DOLAN:  All right.  Why don't we go ahead and

7 take a lunch and we'll be back by 1:30.

8                     (A lunch break was had.)

9      MS. BARRETT:  Your Honors, I need to enter

10 additional appearance.

11      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.

12      MS. BARRETT:  Ronit Barrett from Eimer Stahl, LLP

13 on behalf of Commonwealth Edison Company, 224 South

14 Michigan Avenue, Suite 1100, Chicago 60604.

15      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.  All right.  Do you want to

16 call your next witness.

17      MS. BARRETT:  Sure.  We call Mr. Fruehe --

18 Mr. Martin Fruehe.

19      JUDGE DOLAN:  All right.  Mr. Fruehe, I'll just

20 remind you you're under oath already.  We swore you in

21 already.

22      THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

23      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.

24                     (Witness previously sworn.)

25
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1 WHEREUPON:

2                      MARTIN FRUEHE,

3 called as a witness herein, having been first duly

4 sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

5                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

6 BY MS. BARRETT:

7      Q.   Mr. Fruehe, would you state and spell your

8 full name for the record?

9      A.   Martin G. Fruehe, F R U E H E.

10      Q.   And by whom are you employed?

11      A.   Commonwealth Edison Company.

12      Q.   And what is your position there?

13      A.   I am manager, revenue policy.

14      Q.   Have you offered written testimony in this

15 proceeding?

16      A.   Yes.

17      Q.   The first piece of testimony that I would like

18 to draw your attention to is marked ComEd Exhibit

19 3.0 Revised.  It is entitled Revised Direct Testimony of

20 Martin G. Fruehe, Manager Revenue Policy Commonwealth

21 Edison Company, and it consists of 72 pages of questions

22 and answers and attached Exhibits 3.01 through 3.22;

23 Exhibits 3.02, 3.06, 3.11, 3.13, and 3.17 each have a

24 confidential and public version.

25           As described, is this your direct testimony in
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1 this proceeding?

2      A.   Yes, it is.

3      Q.   Was it prepared by you or under your direction

4 and control?

5      A.   Yes.

6      Q.   Is it true and correct, to the best of your

7 knowledge and belief?

8      A.   Yes, it is.

9      Q.   And have there been any updates in later

10 testimony?

11      A.   No.

12      Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions today,

13 would your answers be the same?

14      A.   Yes, they would.

15      MS. BARRETT:  Your Honors, Exhibits 3.01 through

16 3.16 were e-docket filed on April 29th, 2013; Exhibit

17 3.17 was e-docket filed on May 22nd; and Exhibits

18 3.0 Revised and 3.18 through 3.22 were e-docket filed on

19 May 31st.

20 BY MS. BARRETT:

21      Q.   The second piece of testimony that I would

22 like to discuss is ComEd's Exhibit 14.0, which is

23 entitled, Rebuttal Testimony of Martin G. Fruehe,

24 Manager, Revenue Policy of Commonwealth Edison Company.

25 It consists of 31 pages of questions and answers and
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1 attached Exhibits 14.01 through 14.09.  Exhibits

2 14.02 and 14.06 each have confidential and public

3 versions.  And Exhibit 14.08 has a confidential and

4 proprietary and public version.

5           Is this your rebuttal testimony in this

6 proceeding?

7      A.   Yes, it is.

8      Q.   And was it prepared under your direction and

9 control?

10      A.   Yes.

11      Q.   Is it true and correct to the best of your

12 knowledge and belief?

13      A.   Yes, it is.

14      Q.   And do you have any corrections to this

15 testimony at this time?

16      A.   Yes.  I have two minor corrections.

17      Q.   Can you --

18      A.   First, on Exhibit 14.02 public, work paper 5,

19 page 408, there are two minor corrections here in the

20 footnote section.  Under footnote 1, the word average

21 about midway through the sentence should be replaced

22 with year end.  And also on footnote 2, that same page,

23 second-from-the-last sentence, the term average should

24 be placed with -- replaced with year end.

25           I also have one other correction.  It's ComEd
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1 Exhibit 14.04 the work paper -- I'm sorry -- WPB 10,

2 page 3 of 5, footnote 6, the term average that begins

3 the sentence should be replaced with year end.

4      Q.   Subject to those corrections, if I were to ask

5 you the same questions today, would your answers be the

6 same?

7      A.   Yes, they would.

8      MS. BARRETT:  Your Honors, this was e-docket filed

9 on August 16th, 2013.

10 BY MS. BARRETT:

11      Q.   The third and final piece of testimony is

12 ComEd Exhibit 18.0 Corrected.  It's entitled,

13 Surrebuttal Testimony of Martin G. Fruehe, Manager,

14 Revenue Policy Commonwealth Edison Company.  It consists

15 of 16 pages of questions and answers, and attached

16 Exhibits 18.01 and 18.02.

17           Is this your surrebuttal testimony in this

18 proceeding?

19      A.   Yes, it is.

20      Q.   And was it prepared under your direction and

21 control?

22      A.   Yes.

23      Q.   And is it true and correct, to the best of

24 your knowledge and belief?

25      A.   Yes.
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1      Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions today,

2 would your answers be the same?

3      A.   Yes.

4      MS. BARRETT:  And, your Honors, Exhibits 18.01 and

5 18.02 were e-docket filed on September 23rd.  Exhibit

6 18.0 corrected was e-docket filed on September 27th.

7           In addition to the exhibits that I just

8 discussed with Mr. Fruehe, I understand that there's an

9 agreement with Staff that they would like us to move the

10 working Excel spreadsheets of Exhibit 14.01 and 14.07

11 into the record and we can do that as a late-filed

12 exhibit, probably tomorrow.

13      JUDGE DOLAN:  What were those, 14.07 and --

14      MS. BARRETT:  14.01 and 14.07.  It's the formula --

15 the actual formula and the schedule of adjustments.

16           So I would like to move these exhibits into

17 the record as I've described them.  And if you prefer, I

18 can read them all again.

19      JUDGE DOLAN:  I think we're okay.

20           Is there any objections?

21           Hearing none, then ComEd Exhibit 3.0 Revised

22 along with 3.01 through 3.22 public and confidential

23 versions will be admitted into the record.  ComEd

24 Exhibit 14.0 along with 14.01 through 14.09, again,

25 public and any confidential will be admitted into the
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1 record.  Then we have 18 -- ComEd Exhibit 18 and

2 18.01 and 18.02 will be admitted into the record.

3           And then you'll be filing late Exhibits

4 14.01 and 14.07 along with -- Are you going to file

5 corrections on those other documents or does it -- Do

6 you want to just correct them on the record like you did

7 on the 14- -- you had 14.02 and then 14.04?

8      MS. BARRETT:  We'll file corrected versions of

9 those work papers as well.

10      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.

11      MS. BARRETT:  And just to be clear, I think you

12 mentioned 18.0 and it's 18.0 corrected.

13      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.  I was just told that.  Okay.

14 18.0 corrected will be admitted into the record.

15      MR. RIPPIE:  The working e-doc- -- Your Honors, the

16 working spreadsheets will be put onto CDs.

17      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.

18      MR. RIPPIE:  Do you want three copies in addition

19 to serving a copy on all the parties?

20      JUDGE DOLAN:  They were too big to file on

21 e-docket, I take it?

22      MR. RIPPIE:  And -- Yeah, and, on occasion,

23 filing --

24      JUDGE DOLAN:  Those --

25      MR. RIPPIE:  -- filing nonPDFs on e-docket, we're
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1 not -- it's not always reliable.

2      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.  And then -- Yes, then we'll

3 take three copies along with one for each one of us.

4      MS. BARRETT:  With that, Mr. Fruehe is available

5 for cross-examination.

6      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.

7                     CROSS-EXAMINATION

8 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

9      Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Fruehe.  My name is Tim

10 O'Brien and I'm with the Attorney General's office.

11      A.   Good afternoon.

12      Q.   I have just a couple of topics I wanted to

13 talk to you about today.  And I would first like to

14 start with long-term performance share awards program,

15 or I believe, in your testimony it's LTPSAP.  And I'm

16 not sure if the acronym is worse than the actual

17 description.

18      A.   It's close enough.  I completely understand.

19      Q.   Okay.  In your direct testimony, you adopted a

20 position of including 50 percent of the payments under

21 LTPSAP in the revenue requirement and disallowing

22 50 percent; is that correct?

23      A.   That's correct.

24      Q.   And in your rebuttal testimony, you testified

25 that ComEd would accept the number proposed by Staff
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1 witness, Mr. Bridal, as well as his related explanation

2 as a reasonable allocation; is that correct?

3      A.   Yes, it was correct.  In order to limit the

4 issues, we decided to agree with Staff on this issue.

5      Q.   Okay.  And Mr. Bridal's proposal at that point

6 in time was for an 86.4 percent disallowance; is that

7 correct?

8      A.   That's correct.

9      Q.   And in your rebuttal testimony, you

10 characterized that as being acceptable to the company?

11      A.   In this case, yes, that was acceptable.

12      Q.   Okay.  And also in your rebuttal testimony,

13 you acknowledged that Staff witness, Mr. Bridal,

14 presented a, quote, defensible approximation of

15 allowable LTPSAP costs.  And I can direct you to a line

16 number if you would like.

17      MS. BARRETT:  If you could.

18 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

19      Q.   It should be 310 of the correc- -- I'm

20 sorry -- 310 of rebuttal.  I'm sorry.  It's 311.

21      A.   Yes, I used the term defensible in there.

22      Q.   Okay.  And when you use the term, defensible

23 approximation, at that point, you were referring to the

24 86.4 percent disallowance that Mr. Bridal had proposed,

25 correct?
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1      A.   Well, I actually say, defensible approximation

2 of allowable LTPSA costs in light of facts and governing

3 legal requirements.  And by that -- by that, I meant

4 that there were metrics included in the LTPSA that met

5 the Commission's requirements for recoverability.

6      Q.   In preparing your testimony in this docket,

7 did you also review the proposals of AG witness,

8 Mr. Brosch and CUB/City and industrial witness,

9 Mr. Gorman, on this issue?

10      A.   Well, I'm aware of their positions, if that's

11 what you're asking.

12      Q.   Okay.  Are you aware that both Mr. Brosch and

13 Mr. Gorman proposed to completely eliminate the LTPSAP

14 costs from the revenue requirement?

15      A.   That's what they were proposing in this case,

16 yes.

17      Q.   Okay.  And did Mr. Bridal later adopt a

18 similar position?

19      A.   Yes, he did.

20      Q.   Okay.  If you know, has the Company updated

21 its overall asserted revenue requirements since filing

22 its rebuttal testimony?

23      A.   The Company did not update its revenue

24 requirements since rebuttal testimony.

25      Q.   Okay.  So it would be fair to say that the
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1 Company did not also update its asserted revenue

2 requirements for these LTPSAP expenses?

3      A.   Well, just to be clear, the revenue

4 requirement includes a small portion, the -- assuming a

5 13 percent of the LTPSA cost in the revenue requirement

6 in its rebuttal position.

7      Q.   Okay.  And when you just referenced the

8 13 percent, that would be the hundred percent minus the

9 86.4 percent disallowance?

10      A.   Yes, approximately.

11      Q.   Okay.  Okay.  I'm just going to shift gears a

12 little bit to late payment charges revenue, and that's

13 roughly on page 13 of your surrebuttal.  And I'm -- Just

14 to clarify a question, the most recent version was

15 18.0 corrected?

16      A.   That's correct,

17      MS. BARRETT:  That's right.

18 BY MR. O'BRIEN:

19      Q.   Okay.  The version I have printed out is 18.0,

20 so some of my line numbers might be a slightly bit off

21 and I apologize for that in advance.  First and

22 foremost, on the late payment charges revenue issue,

23 there appears to be two functions of the late payment

24 charges.  The first of those relates to purchase

25 receivables; is that correct?
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1      A.   That's correct.

2      Q.   And then the second relates to transmission,

3 correct?

4      A.   Well, the second really relates to the

5 allocation of late payments charges to the transmission

6 revenue requirement.

7      Q.   Okay.  Would it be fair to say that there is

8 agreement between the parties on the late payment

9 charges issue as it relates to purchase receivables?

10      A.   Yes, there is.

11      Q.   Okay.  Given the agreement, I really want to

12 focus on the transmission side of late payment charges,

13 which, as you noted, is the portion of late payment

14 charges revenues that ComEd has allocated to its

15 transmission service function.  Is that a fair

16 characterization?

17      A.   That is correct.

18      Q.   Okay.  The transmission service function is

19 regulated by FERC; is that correct?

20      A.   I would say, in a general sense, yes.

21      Q.   Okay.  On line 277 of your surrebuttal, you

22 quote Mr. Tolsdorf -- Staff witness, Mr. Tolsdorf, where

23 he says that, the Company correctly points out that as

24 long as LPCs are set to be allocated properly through

25 both transmission and delivery rates, rate payers will
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1 not be harmed.  Did I read that correctly?

2      A.   Yes, you did.

3      Q.   I just want to ask you a couple of questions

4 about this.  ComEd rate payers pay both for the delivery

5 service and a transmission service revenue requirement;

6 is that correct?

7      A.   ComEd rate payer -- Vast majority of ComEd

8 rate payers pay delivery ser- -- a portion of the

9 delivery service revenue requirement.  Those who take

10 service directly from ComEd -- I'm sorry -- supply

11 service directly from ComEd pay a portion of the -- a

12 direct portion of the ComEd's revenue requirement.  And

13 on transmission side, the rest of the transmission costs

14 are recovered through res suppliers who pass those costs

15 along to ComEd delivery service customers.

16      Q.   Okay.  Now, you kind of answered this question

17 a bit in your response there, but ComEd customers can

18 buy either bundled energy supply and delivery service

19 from ComEd or they can buy only delivery services,

20 correct?

21      A.   That's correct.

22      Q.   And if a customer elects to take only delivery

23 services, they would ultimately end up paying one of the

24 res providers for supply of their energy, correct?

25      A.   Yes.
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1      Q.   And as you just noted, the res customer would

2 ultimately end up paying a portion of the transmission

3 charges to the res or rather -- Let me strike that and

4 rephrase it a little bit better.

5           The res would seek to recoup from the res

6 customer a portion of the transmission service charge?

7      A.   By transmission service charge, are you

8 talking about the transmission revenue requirement or

9 the charges for transmission service?

10      Q.   Thank you.  The transmission service revenue

11 requirement.

12      A.   The res would pass along the cost of the

13 transmission revenue requirement that they incur to

14 the -- to their customers.

15      Q.   Okay.  So if I am a res customer, would you

16 agree that I would be charged the delivery service rate

17 established by the Commission, delivery only?

18      A.   By the Illinois Commerce Commission?

19      Q.   Correct.

20      A.   Yes.

21      Q.   And then I would also be charged a supply

22 price set by the res?

23      A.   You would pay a supply price worked in

24 accordance with the res, whatever that contract would

25 be, which would include transmission services.
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1      Q.   Okay.  Generally speaking, is it up to the

2 individual res to set their prices?

3      A.   Yes.

4      Q.   In your surrebuttal testimony, you observed

5 that the energy market in ComEd's service territory has

6 become, quote, very competitive -- and that's at line

7 291 -- and also, that there are over 60 energy suppliers

8 currently registered; is that correct?

9      A.   At the time I wrote my rebuttal testimony,

10 yes.  I'm not sure if it's changed since then, but yes,

11 that's correct.

12      Q.   Okay.  You also go on to state in that same Q

13 and A, that you find it unlikely that, given the level

14 of competition, reses would pass along to their

15 customers the actual transmission costs but rather keep

16 the LPC credit for themselves?  Did I fairly -- read

17 that fairly?

18      A.   Yes, you read it correctly.

19      Q.   Okay.  Mr. Fruehe, do you have an opinion as

20 to whether the prices that reses charge to their

21 customers are purely cost-based or whether they're

22 largely a function of market forces?

23      MS. BARRETT:  I want to just object.  I think we

24 might be getting outside the scope of his testimony.

25      MR. O'BRIEN:  Well, I -- If I may respond, I am
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1 just looking to get a little bit more information about

2 Mr. Fruehe's opinion, which I just read.  He gives the

3 opinion that he finds it unlikely that given the level

4 of competition in the marketplace that reses would pass

5 along the actual costs of these things, and I just want

6 to delve into that a little bit.

7      JUDGE DOLAN:  Well, subject to that, we're going to

8 overrule the objection.

9 BY THE WITNESS:

10      A.   I'm sorry.  Could you repeat the question,

11 please.

12      Q.   Absolutely.  Mr. Fruehe, do you have an

13 opinion as to whether the prices that reses charge to

14 their customers are purely cost-based or whether they're

15 largely a function of market forces?

16      A.   Given the level of competition, I would have

17 to say they would be market-based prices.

18      Q.   Okay.  And, Mr. Fruehe, if you know -- again,

19 this only if you know, but are you aware if the res

20 prices that are charged are adjusted each time that

21 ComEd revises its formula transmission service rate?

22      A.   It's kind of hard to answer that question

23 because I don't know the terms of the contracts that the

24 reses pass -- you know, have with their customers.  I do

25 know that the prices for transmission service are
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1 publicly -- are made available so everybody would know

2 exactly what that cost from ComEd is; and not passing

3 along a certain cost or a certain credit, may give --

4 may ruin a competitive advantage that somebody has.

5      Q.   Okay.  Again, Mr. Fruehe, if you know, has

6 ComEd conducted any studies of whether or how much res

7 prices change in reaction to changes in ComEd's network

8 transmission service rates?

9      A.   No, I have no knowledge of that.

10      Q.   Mr. Fruehe, would you generally agree that

11 ComEd has no control over the prices that are set by res

12 suppliers of energy to ComEd's customers?

13      A.   Well, ComEd doesn't have any direct control

14 over those prices.  We do pass along our transmission

15 cost to them, but the overall price that they present to

16 customers, ComEd has no control over that.

17      Q.   Largely because, as we've talked about before,

18 the price -- the supply price that a res charges is

19 generally a contractual agreement between the res and

20 its customer, correct?

21      A.   Yes.  It's private information between a

22 resident and a customer.

23      MR. O'BRIEN:  Thank you, Mr. Fruehe.  I have

24 nothing further.

25      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.  Staff?
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1      MS. CARDONI:  Staff has no questions.

2      JUDGE DOLAN:  Do you want to take a minute?

3      MR. RIPPIE:  Please.

4      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.  We'll go off the record.

5                     (Discussion off the record.)

6      MS. BARRETT:  Your Honors, we don't have any

7 redirect, per se; however, there is one issue that we

8 just wanted to clarify in case anyone wanted -- the

9 judges or the parties wanted to ask a question about it

10 and that is, Ms. Brinkman was asked questions regarding

11 the WACC gross-up for income taxes that she was unable

12 to answer because she was not involved in 11-0721 or

13 12-0321, and Mr. Fruehe was involved in those cases and

14 is able to answer those questions if anyone would like

15 to pose them.

16      MS. LUSSON:  Well, Mr. Fruehe didn't address it in

17 his testimony and I think the record sort of speaks for

18 itself based on cross-examination so I'm --

19      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.

20      MS. LUSSON:  -- satisfied with the state of the

21 record.

22      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.  Then you're free to go

23 Mr. Fruehe.  Thank you.

24      MR. BERNET:  Free to go.

25      JUDGE DOLAN:  No pun intended.
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1                     (Witness excused.)

2                     (Brief pause.)

3      MR. STAHL:  Thank you.  Good afternoon, your

4 Honors.  David Stahl appearing on behalf of Commonwealth

5 Edison Company, and we will call as our next witness

6 Anastasia M. O'Brien.

7      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.  Mr. Stahl, did your appearance

8 get entered into the record?

9      MR. STAHL:  Apparently not, but I will see to it

10 that it is entered ASAP.

11      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.

12      MR. STAHL:  I thought someone might have done that

13 for me but I guess not.

14      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.  Do you want to do it real

15 quick or do you want to --

16      MR. STAHL:  David Stahl, firm of Eimer Stahl, LLP,

17 224 South Michigan Avenue, Chicago, 60604 for

18 Commonwealth Edison.

19      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.  Go ahead and call your

20 witness.

21      MS. STAHL:  Yes, Anastasia M. O'Brien.

22      JUDGE DOLAN:  All right.  Please raise your right

23 hand.

24                    (Witness sworn.)

25      JUDGE DOLAN:  Thank you.
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1 WHEREUPON:

2                  ANASTASIA POLEK-O'BRIEN

3 called as a witness herein, having been first duly

4 sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

5                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

6 BY MR. STAHL:

7      Q.   Ms. O'Brien, will you state your full name for

8 the record, please.

9      A.   Anastasia Polek-O'Brien.

10      Q.   By whom are you employed?

11      A.   Exelon.

12      JUDGE DOLAN:  Is your mic on?

13      THE WITNESS:  The green light's on.  That should be

14 it.  I had the dull green.  Now, it's the bright green.

15 BY MR. STAHL:

16      Q.   All right.  By whom are you employed?

17      A.   Exelon.

18      Q.   And what is your position with Exelon?

19      A.   Vice president and deputy general counsel.

20      Q.   And have you offered written testimony in this

21 proceeding?

22      A.   Yes.

23      Q.   Now, I'm going to direct you to several pieces

24 of testimony, the first of which is marked ComEd

25 Exhibit 8.0 entitled, Direct Testimony of Anastasia M.
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1 Polek-O'Brien on behalf of Commonwealth Edison Company.

2 It consists of 15 pages of questions and answers and

3 attached Exhibits 8.01 through 8.11.  Is this your

4 direct testimony in this proceeding?

5      A.   It is.

6      Q.   Was it prepared by you or under your direction

7 and control?

8      A.   Yes.

9      Q.   Is it true and correct, to the best of your

10 knowledge and belief?

11      A.   Yes.

12      Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions as set

13 forth in that testimony today, would your answers be the

14 same?

15      A.   Yes.

16      MR. STAHL:  And, your Honors, for the record,

17 Exhibits 8.0 through 8.11 were e-docket filed on

18 April 29th, 2013.

19      JUDGE DOLAN:  Thank you.

20 BY MR. STAHL:

21      Q.   Now, the second piece of testimony is ComEd

22 Exhibit 15.0, entitled, Rebuttal Testimony of Anastasia

23 M. Polek-O'Brien consisting of 25 pages of questions and

24 answers and attached Exhibits 15.01 through 15.09.

25           Do you recognize that as your rebuttal
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1 testimony in this proceeding?

2      A.   Yes.

3      Q.   Was it also prepared under your direction and

4 control?

5      A.   Yes.

6      Q.   And is it also true and correct, to the best

7 of your knowledge and belief?

8      A.   Yes.

9      Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions today

10 as set forth in your prepared rebuttal testimony, would

11 your answers be the same?

12      A.   Yes.

13      MR. STAHL:  And, your Honors, again, for the

14 record, this piece of testimony was e-docket filed on

15 August 16th, 2013.

16 BY MR. STAHL:

17      Q.   Now, finally, the third piece of testimony is

18 ComEd Exhibit 19.0 Corrected, that is entitled,

19 Corrected Surrebuttal Testimony of Anastasia M.

20 Polek-O'Brien consisting of ten pages of questions and

21 answers and attached Exhibits 19.01 through 19.03.

22           Do you recognize that as your surrebuttal

23 testimony in this case?

24      A.   Yes.

25      Q.   And was it also prepared under your direction
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1 and control?

2      A.   Yes.

3      Q.   Is it true and correct, to the best of your

4 knowledge and belief?

5      A.   Yes.

6      Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions today

7 as set forth in your prepared surrebuttal testimony,

8 would your answers be the same?

9      A.   Yes.

10      MR. STAHL:  Your Honors, finally Exhibit 19.0 was

11 e-docket filed on September 27th, 2013.  Exhibits 19.01,

12 19.02, and 19.03 were e-docket filed September 23rd,

13 2013.  Before I move these into evidence, I would like

14 to point out that we do have -- pursuant to an agreement

15 with Staff -- a further change that -- and it's actually

16 a deletion to be made from ComEd Exhibit 19.0 Corrected

17 and that is, that we have agreed with Staff to remove

18 the testimony at lines 208 through 215; and we can

19 either do that by simply crossing that out on this

20 version or by submitting a clean substitute on e-docket.

21 Presumably we could do that today.

22      JUDGE KIMBREL:  Just for the record, on corrected

23 20- -- it might be -- you said 209 and 216 on the

24 corrected version?

25      MR. Stahl:  Well, it's on -- My version it's on
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1 lines 208 through 215 regarding Analysis Group.

2      JUDGE DOLAN:  All right.  The copy that I'm holding

3 that was just delivered to us this morning is

4 209 through 216.

5      MR. STAHL:  Okay.

6      JUDGE DOLAN:  So I'm trying to clarify it.

7      MR. STAHL:  Yeah.  It's just Subsection D.

8      JUDGE DOLAN:  It talks about Analysis Group?

9      MR. STAHL:  Right, one question, one answer.

10      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.  So it's 20- -- At least the

11 version that was given to us this morning is 209 to 216.

12      MR. STAHL:  Okay.  I think we're on the same page.

13 We will -- I'm sure that's accurate.  And I take it then

14 we will just simply file the version on e-docket today

15 without those lines.

16           All right.  Well, I'm told there's something

17 that we're going to need to do with confidentiality as

18 well to conform to the ALJ's ruling.  So it may be

19 tomorrow, if that's acceptable.

20      JUDGE DOLAN:  Yes.

21      MS. CARDONI:  Judge, just to be clear, I think the

22 Staff motion also encompassed the Exhibit 19.03 and I

23 understood that that was going to be withdrawn as well.

24      MR. STAHL:  We will do so, yes.

25      MS. CARDONI:  And then that reference is at lines
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1 36 and 37 to the corrected version of Ms. O'Brien's

2 surrebuttal.

3      MR. STAHL:  We will correct that then as well.

4      MS. CARDONI:  Thank you.

5      MR. STAHL:  Certainly.

6           Subject to those clarifications, ComEd then

7 moves into evidence Exhibits 8.0 through 8.11,

8 15.0 through 15.09, and 19.01 through 19.02.  And we --

9      MS. LUSSON:  Your Honor -- I'm sorry.

10      MR. STAHL:  -- and we tender Ms. Polek-O'Brien for

11 cross-examination.

12      MS. LUSSON:  I just have one clarifying question

13 and that is, many of those exhibits are currently listed

14 and were filed on e-docket and served on the parties as

15 confidential and proprietary, and I just want to make

16 sure or make clear that -- So based on your

17 representation about needing to take care of

18 confidential and proprietary designations, in light in

19 the ruling, that all of these exhibits that are now

20 listed as proprietary and confidential in direct

21 rebuttal and surrebuttal, to the extent they still

22 exist, my understanding is the confidential surrebuttal

23 exhibit is now going away, that those will be filed as

24 public?

25      MR. STAHL:  Yes, that is correct.
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1      MS. LUSSON:  Thank you.

2      JUDGE DOLAN:  All right.  Is there any objections

3 to these documents going into the record?

4           Hearing none, ComEd Exhibit 8.0 along with

5 Exhibits 8.01 and -- through 8.11 will be admitted into

6 the record.  ComEd Exhibits 15.0 along with

7 Exhibits 15.01 through 15.09 will be admitted into the

8 record.  And 19.0 Corrected along with 19.01 and

9 19.02 will be admitted into the record.

10      MR. STAHL:  Thank you, your Honors.

11      JUDGE DOLAN:  Staff ...

12                     CROSS-EXAMINATION

13 BY MS. CARDONI:

14      Q.   Good morning [sic], Ms. O'Brien.  Jessica

15 Cardoni on behalf of Staff.

16      A.   Hello.

17      Q.   I have a few questions for you and my

18 colleague, John Feeley, has a few questions as well.

19 Starting with your direct testimony, you state that

20 you're the vice president responsible for all legal

21 regulatory work; is that correct?

22      A.   Yes.

23      Q.   And you're responsible for selecting outside

24 counsel and third-party consultants and vendors,

25 correct?
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1      A.   Among those responsible, yes.

2      Q.   Before we continue, can I just remind you to

3 speak up.  I think they're having some difficulty in

4 Springfield hearing you over the intranet.

5      A.   Okay.

6      Q.   Thank you.  In your testimony at line 172, you

7 state that, detailed monthly invoices from outside

8 counsel and experts were reviewed and approved prior to

9 paying, correct?

10      A.   Yes.

11      Q.   And, in fact, two Exelon attorneys review

12 before approval; is that correct?

13      A.   Yes.

14      Q.   Generally, were you one of those attorneys who

15 reviewed 2012 rate case expense?

16      A.   Portions of it.

17      Q.   For those bills that you did not review, were

18 other attorneys at Exelon responsible for reviewing

19 them?

20      A.   Yes.

21      Q.   And do you supervise those attorneys?

22      A.   Some of them.

23      Q.   During 2012, did you ever deny partial or

24 total payment on an invoice submitted by outside counsel

25 or a third-party vendor?
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1      A.   I'm sorry.  During when?

2      Q.   During 2012.

3      A.   Did I ever do in 2012?  Yes.

4      Q.   You did?

5      A.   Yes.

6      Q.   And if you recall, what were the grounds that

7 you opposed partial or full recovery for those invoices?

8      A.   There was some work that wasn't authorized.

9 There was other work that we had questions over, and

10 then there was some work that had a bit more time on it

11 than we thought was appropriate.

12      Q.   So the billing invoices that were submitted as

13 part of your Exhibits 8.04 to 8.07 were bills that were

14 entirely paid for by Exelon; is that correct?

15      A.   Yes.  8.04 and 8.05 show the -- for lack of a

16 better term -- I'll say the payment receipts.  It shows

17 what was actually paid.

18      Q.   So anything that there was a dispute about,

19 wouldn't be included in those exhibits?

20      A.   That's right.

21      Q.   And is it your position that all of the bills

22 in 8.04 and 8.05 were just and reasonable?

23      A.   Yes.

24      Q.   Referring to your rebuttal testimony, at line

25 66, is it your position that even though ComEd did not
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1 vol- -- I'm sorry.  Is it your position that even though

2 ComEd did voluntarily not contest some of Mr. Bridal's

3 adjustments for car rentals, attorney travel, meals,

4 certain shipping fees, and one outside consultant, those

5 were removed from the revenue requirement?

6      A.   I'm sorry?

7      Q.   I can rephrase that if it was unclear.

8      A.   Yes.

9      Q.   At line 66, you discuss several adjustments

10 that Mr. Bridal made, correct?

11      A.   Yes.

12      Q.   And those adjustments were on items like car

13 rentals, attorney travel, some meals, some shipping

14 fees, and portions of fees for one outside consultant,

15 correct?

16      A.   Yes.

17      Q.   Now, according to your testimony, you removed

18 those from the revenue -- ComEd removed them from the

19 revenue requirement, correct?

20      A.   Yes, ComEd is willing to not recover those.

21      Q.   But in your testimony, you state that you

22 believe they were justified, correct?

23      A.   Yes, I do.

24      Q.   But you did not agree to withdraw ComEd's

25 request for recovery for all of Mr. Fiorella and SFIO
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1 costs, correct?

2      A.   That's correct.

3      Q.   And at line 304 of your rebuttal, you state

4 that Mr. Fiorella's work is useful and beneficial; is

5 that correct?

6      A.   Yes.

7      Q.   But that's not the standard under 9-229 for

8 recovery, is it?

9      A.   I'm sorry?

10      Q.   The standard for recovery under Section

11 9-229 of the Public Utilities Act isn't useful and

12 beneficial, is it?

13      A.   I don't believe that's a quote from that

14 section, that's correct.

15      Q.   Mr. Bridal also contests certain expenses

16 related to online search, correct?

17      A.   Yes.

18      Q.   And you state in your rebuttal testimony at

19 line 473 that, he seems to believe online research

20 requires some sort of documented approval?  I'm sorry.

21 I'll let you get there.

22      A.   Yes, I have it.  And that is what that line

23 says.

24      Q.   And at line 336 of your testimony, you state,

25 the billing guidelines are simply that, guidelines.
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1 They do not prohibit ComEd from paying for work outside

2 the guidelines under all circumstances; is that correct?

3      A.   Yes.

4      Q.   And further, you state, the guidelines simply

5 put legal service providers on notice that they may not

6 be reimbursed if they incur charges outside of the

7 billing guidelines and prior arrangements have not been

8 made, correct?

9      A.   Yes.

10      Q.   I would like you to refer to your

11 Exhibit 8.03, which are the Exelon billing guidelines.

12 And if you could turn to page 12, the conclusion states,

13 we expect these guidelines to be strictly followed,

14 correct?

15      A.   Yes.

16      Q.   And it also says, no deviations are acceptable

17 without the company's prior approval, correct?

18      A.   Yes.

19      Q.   Would you say that language is stronger that

20 how you described the billing guidelines in your

21 rebuttal testimony?

22      A.   No.

23      Q.   Does it say in the guidelines that they're

24 merely guidelines?

25      A.   I'm sorry?
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1      Q.   Does it say in the guidelines that they're

2 simply that, guidelines?

3      A.   Well, it's entitled Guidelines.

4      Q.   Okay.  But it doesn't qualify the guidelines,

5 as you did in your rebuttal testimony, as just merely

6 guidelines?

7      A.   I'm not sure that I see anything inconsistent

8 with what I said and what the guidelines say.

9      Q.   Okay.  On page 10 of the guidelines --

10 starting on page 9 and continuing on page 10, this is a

11 list of items that the Company will not pay for,

12 correct?

13      A.   Yes.

14      Q.   Does that list include a line that says,

15 Westlaw Lexis electronic research charges except as

16 specifically authorized by Exelon?

17      A.   Yes, on page 10, it does.

18      Q.   And it's your opinion that research is an

19 ordinary cost of litigating rate cases; is that correct?

20      A.   Absolutely.

21      Q.   Does page 10 also list meals, unless related

22 to long distance travel, are not recoverable -- I'm

23 sorry -- are not allowable?

24      A.   That's what it says, yep.

25      Q.   But there were some meals charged to Exelon
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1 that were paid for, correct?

2      A.   There were several meals that we decided were

3 reasonable, yes.

4      Q.   And originally, those expenses were included

5 in the revenue requirement?

6      A.   They were originally included.  We removed

7 them subsequently.

8      Q.   I'm sorry.  I couldn't hear.

9      A.   We removed them subsequently.

10      Q.   Is it your opinion that meals are an ordinary

11 and necessary cost of litigating rate cases?

12      A.   Sometimes.

13      Q.   Is it your opinion that recovering the costs

14 of meals is just and reasonable?

15      A.   Sometimes.

16      Q.   Is it -- In your opinion, is it just and

17 reasonable for rate payers to pay for meals of outside

18 counsel?

19      A.   Sometimes it's the most efficient way to get

20 something done, yes.  In that case, I believe it's

21 reasonable.

22      Q.   And is your opinion the same if some of those

23 outside counsel charged several hundred dollars an hour?

24      A.   Yes.

25      Q.   Now, you testified that the billing guidelines
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1 are merely that, guidelines, correct?

2      A.   Yes.

3      Q.   It's true, isn't it, that outside counsel must

4 sign engagement letters acknowledging that they have

5 reviewed and accepted the guidelines?

6      A.   Yes, they must agree to accept the guidelines.

7      Q.   I'm sorry?  I didn't hear.

8      A.   Yes, they must agree to accept the guidelines.

9      Q.   Okay.  Could I refer you to Exhibit 8.02, and

10 you can refer to the public version if you would like,

11 if that's easier.  The Bates stamp I would like you to

12 refer to is 01071.

13      A.   I have that.

14      Q.   And this is an engagement letter between

15 Exelon BSC and one of the law firms that represented

16 ComEd on the rate cases, correct, Eimer Stahl?

17      A.   Yes, that's correct.

18      Q.   And it states on the letter that Exelon is

19 retaining that firm for advice and counsel on the

20 2011 formula rate filing, correct?

21      A.   Yes.

22      Q.   And it's signed by you; is that correct?

23      A.   It is, yes.

24      Q.   And in the first sentence of the last

25 paragraph, it states, as counsel to Exelon, you have
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1 reviewed and accepted Exelon's billing guidelines,

2 doesn't it?

3      A.   Yes, it does.

4      Q.   I want to go back to the billing guidelines at

5 8.03.  Are you there?

6      A.   I'm there.

7      Q.   Okay.  On page 1, the guidelines discuss

8 conflicts.  And it states that, Exelon demands undivided

9 loyalty.  Do outside counsel have to follow that

10 guideline?

11      A.   Yes.

12      Q.   And it states that outside counsel cannot take

13 positions detrimental to the company?

14      A.   Without the company's permission, that's

15 correct.

16      Q.   On page 2 of the guidelines, it says in bold,

17 in Section C, if you are not properly retained or work

18 is not properly authorized for that matter, you are not

19 entitled to payment for services performed in connection

20 with such matter, correct?

21      A.   Yes, that's what it says.

22      MS. CARDONI:  That's all I have, but my cocounsel

23 has some questions.

24

25
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1                     CROSS-EXAMINATION

2 BY MR. FEELEY:

3      Q.   Good afternoon, Ms. O'Brien.  My name is John

4 Feeley.  I represent the Staff.  I have some cross

5 exhibits.  I'll hand them out all at once and then I'll

6 go over them with you.

7      A.   Okay.

8                     (Brief pause.)

9 BY MR. FEELEY:

10      Q.   Ms. O'Brien, have you -- do you have in front

11 of you what's been marked for identification as Staff

12 Cross Exhibits 2 through 7?

13      A.   I have them.  I haven't finished reading them

14 yet, though.

15      Q.   Pardon?

16      A.   I haven't finished reading them yet, though.

17      Q.   Okay.  Tell me when you're ready.

18                    (Witness viewing document.)

19 BY THE WITNESS:

20      A.   All right.

21      Q.   Okay.  If I could direct your attention to

22 what's been marked for identification as Staff Cross

23 Exhibit No. 2, it's the Company's response to Staff data

24 request MGM 4.03.

25      A.   Yes.
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1      Q.   Okay.  Are you responsible for the answers set

2 forth in that data request response?

3      A.   Yes.

4      Q.   And if I asked you the question set forth in

5 that request, would your answer be the same as set forth

6 in the response?

7      A.   Yes.

8      Q.   Okay.  I would like to direct your attention

9 to Staff data -- Staff Cross Exhibit No. 3.  It's the

10 Company's response to Staff data request MGM 4.04.

11      MR. STAHL:  Mr. Feeley, if the question on each of

12 these is going to be the same, namely, whether we will

13 accept these answers, we will.  We can stipulate if you

14 would like to enter it into evidence.

15      MR. FEELEY:  Sure.  I'll just identify them for the

16 record and then I'll give one question.

17      MR. STAHL:  Okay.

18 BY MR. FEELEY:

19      Q.   Okay.  So Staff data request No. 3 is the

20 Company's response to MGM 4.04.  Do you see that?  Am I

21 correct?

22      A.   Yes.

23      Q.   Okay.  And what's been marked for

24 identification as Staff Cross Exhibit No. 4, that's the

25 Company's response to MGM 4.05; is that correct?
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1      A.   Yes.

2      Q.   All right.  And what's been marked for

3 identification as Staff Cross Exhibit No. 5 is the

4 Company's response to MGM 4.06 --

5      A.   Yes.

6      Q.   -- is that correct?

7           And Staff Cross Exhibit No. 6 is the Company's

8 response to MGM 4.07; is that correct?

9      A.   Yes.

10      Q.   And Staff Cross Exhibit No. 7 is the Company's

11 response to MGM 4.10; is that correct?

12      A.   Yes.

13      Q.   All right.

14      MR. FEELEY:  At this time, Staff would move to

15 admit into evidence Staff Cross Exhibit Nos. 2, 3, 4, 5,

16 6, and 7.

17      MR. STAHL:  No objection.

18      JUDGE DOLAN:  All right.  Staff Cross Exhibits

19 2 through 7 will be admitted into the record.

20      MR. FEELEY:  Thank you.

21 BY MR. FEELEY:

22      Q.   You can put those to the side.  You may need

23 to refer to them but you may not.

24           Ms. O'Brien, is it correct that it's ComEd's

25 practice to engage experts through outside counsel law
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1 firms?

2      A.   Yes.

3      Q.   Okay.  And ComEd does that through the law

4 firm of Eimer Stahl; is that correct?

5      A.   Among others, yes.

6      Q.   Okay.  And why is it ComEd's regular practice

7 to engage its experts through outside counsel law firms?

8      A.   It's our legal opinion that that's the best

9 way to do it for a number of reasons that are

10 privileged.

11      Q.   Okay.  And what skills and resources does

12 Eimer Stahl, LLP possess that ComEd's in-house counsel

13 either at ComEd or at Exelon Business Service Company do

14 not have?

15      A.   I don't know that there are any.

16      Q.   So they don't have any different skills than

17 you, yourself, or Mr. Bernet, or any other attorneys at

18 Exelon Business Service Corp.?

19      A.   Not that I'm aware of.

20      Q.   So ComEd is capable of engaging those experts

21 directly themselves if they so chose, right?

22      A.   In our legal opinion, for reasons that are

23 privileged, no.

24      Q.   Which entity decided that Analysis Group was

25 needed in Docket 11-0721 -- ComEd or Eimer Stahl?
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1      A.   ComEd, I believe, with the recommendation of

2 outside counsel.

3      Q.   I'm sorry?

4      A.   ComEd with the recommendation of outside

5 counsel.

6      Q.   But the ultimate decision was made by ComEd?

7      A.   Yes.

8      Q.   Okay.  Which entity signed the contract hiring

9 Analysis Group -- ComEd or Eimer Stahl?

10      A.   Eimer Stahl.  It's attached to my testimony.

11      Q.   And which entity reviewed and paid Analysis

12 Group's invoices -- ComEd or Eimer Stahl?

13      A.   Both, actually.

14      Q.   Both ComEd and Eimer Stahl?

15      A.   Yes.  The outside firm would review the

16 charges, and if they believed -- and pay usually the

17 expert -- and would then refer the charges and recommend

18 that they be paid.

19      Q.   So -- But ComEd had the ultimate final

20 authority on whether the charges were reasonable or

21 whether they should be paid, correct?

22      A.   That's correct.

23      Q.   And ComEd is the ultimate recipient of the

24 services that were provided by Analysis Group, correct?

25      A.   Yes.
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1      Q.   And ComEd's ultimately responsible for the

2 fees that were charged by Analysis Group?

3      A.   Yes.

4      Q.   Is it correct that Eimer Stahl spent

5 approximately one to two hours in engaging Analysis

6 Group?

7      A.   Yes.

8      Q.   Now, Eimer Stahl provided services to ComEd

9 under a fixed fee basis, correct?

10      A.   Yes.

11      Q.   So they weren't charging by separate hours?

12      MR. STAHL:  Well, can we specify the case?  I don't

13 know if you're talking about 11-0721 or the 12 case or

14 both, but --

15      MR. FEELEY:  Fine.

16      MR. STAHL:  -- maybe you --

17      MR. FEELEY:  These are all in relation to Docket

18 No. 11-0721.

19      MR. STAHL:  All right.  Did you understand that?

20      THE WITNESS:  Yes, I did.

21      MR. STAHL:  All right.

22 BY MR. FEELEY:

23      Q.   And so Eimer Stahl was paid on the fixed fee

24 basis for that docket, correct?

25      A.   The 11 docket, yeah.



152

1      Q.   Yes?

2      A.   Yes.

3      Q.   Okay.  Hypothetically, if the Commission were

4 to decide to disallow the recovery of fees that Eimer

5 Stahl incurred related to engaging outside experts, how

6 could the Commission decide what that adjustment would

7 be if the Company is paid on a fixed fee basis?

8      A.   I'm sorry?  How could the Commission --

9      Q.   Come up with the amount associated with the

10 work provided by Eimer Stahl to engage those outside

11 experts if they're paid on a fixed fee basis?

12      A.   Well, I guess the first question would be

13 whether or not there was an incremental actual cost to

14 providing those couple hours of services.  There may or

15 may not have been.

16      Q.   So there's no cost to having Eimer Stahl

17 engage outside experts to ComEd?

18      A.   Depending on -- Under the fee arrangement,

19 there may or may not have been an incremental cost.

20 When there's a fixed fee, the fee is fixed regardless,

21 and would be the same whether regardless or not they

22 spent the couple of hours doing this task or not.

23      Q.   Well, am I correct that the fixed fee really

24 isn't a fixed fee?  Isn't there also kind of a collar

25 for the charges charged by --
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1      A.   There is --

2      Q.   -- Eimer Stahl?

3      A.   Yes, that's correct.

4      Q.   And then if the attorneys worked less hours on

5 sort of budget amount, then there would be a reduction

6 coming that would reduce the amount that was paid under

7 the fixed fee; is that correct?

8      A.   Yes.  Yeah, that's why I said it depends

9 whether there's an incremental cost to it or not.  It

10 depends whether it was within the collar boundaries or

11 not.

12      Q.   So your definition of an incremental cost is

13 only if the amount of hours exceeds collar?

14      A.   No.

15      Q.   Then what's your definition of an incremental

16 cost?

17      A.   Whether -- This is not my definition of

18 incremental costs in the grand scheme of things.  This

19 is my definition of incremental costs with respect to

20 these specific fee agreements.  I would say it would

21 depend on whether or not the Company would have paid

22 less had that work not been performed.  So it would

23 depend where it fell within the spectrum of the collar.

24      Q.   Okay.  Well, if the company -- if Eimer Stahl

25 had not done those services, was there or was there not
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1 an incremental cost?

2      A.   I don't believe that there was an incremental

3 cost in the 11 case, but I would have to check to be

4 certain.

5      Q.   All right.  Is the bill for Analysis Group, is

6 that included in Eimer Stahl's fixed fee?

7      A.   No.

8      Q.   So that's separate?

9      A.   Yes.  The fixed fee only relates to legal

10 services.  It doesn't relate to expert services.

11      Q.   You're familiar with a Dr. Chambers and a

12 Dr. Hubbard, correct?

13      A.   Yes.

14      Q.   And they're from Analysis Group?

15      A.   Yes.

16      Q.   Okay.  So ComEd engaged both Dr. Chambers and

17 Dr. Hubbard, correct, in Docket 11-0721?

18      A.   Yes, both of the consultants were engaged.

19 That's right.  They weren't both paid, though.

20      Q.   Pardon?

21      A.   They were both engaged to do work.  They

22 didn't actually both do work, though.

23      Q.   Yeah.  Only Dr. Hubbard performed the work; is

24 that correct?

25      A.   That's correct.  Dr. Chambers did not.
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1      Q.   Okay.  Did you make the decision to use

2 Dr. Hubbard?

3      A.   I was among those who decided that Dr. Hubbard

4 should begin working, yes.

5      Q.   You were among them?

6      A.   I was among them, yes.

7      Q.   Okay.  Who else was a part of that decision?

8      A.   Well, certainly Tom O'Neill, general counsel

9 was, and Mr. Hemphill, I believe Mr. Trpik.  It's a

10 little sketchy exactly who the group was, but it was a

11 decision that was made after consideration --

12      Q.   Okay.

13      A.   -- and a consultation with a number of others.

14      Q.   All right.  Then all the people that you

15 mentioned, they're all ComEd employees, correct, or work

16 for Exelon Business Service Company, correct?

17      A.   Yes.  We did consult certainly with our

18 outside counsel and asked them for their advice as well.

19      Q.   Okay.  But the ultimate decision was a ComEd

20 decision, correct?

21      A.   Oh, yes.

22      Q.   Okay.  All right.  If you can look at your

23 direct testimony, your Exhibit 8.02 --

24      A.   Which one?

25      Q.   8.02.
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1      A.   Does it matter if it's the confidential or

2 public version?

3      Q.   The public is fine.

4      A.   Okay.

5      Q.   Let me know when you're ready.

6      A.   I'm here.  What page?  It's big exhibit.

7      Q.   Okay.  ComEd Exhibit 8.02, there's two

8 engagement letters from Eimer Stahl addressed to the

9 Analysis Group, correct?

10      A.   There is one --

11      Q.   And I --

12      A.   -- that starts on page 01033 and you'll have

13 to point me to the other one if you have it.  That might

14 be quicker than me finding it.

15      Q.   I'm sorry.  The one on Bates stamp 01033,

16 that's addressed to Dr. Chambers, correct?  That's what

17 you are referring to?

18      A.   And Mr. Malinek, yes.

19      Q.   Pardon?

20      A.   And Mr. Malinek, M A L I N E K.

21      Q.   All right.  And then go to Bates -- Do you

22 have Bates Stamp 01036 and 037 and 038?

23      A.   Oh, there it is.  Yes.

24      Q.   Okay.  And that's an engagement letter that's

25 addressed to Dr. Hubbard and Mr. Malinek?



157

1      A.   Yep.

2      Q.   Okay.  What's the relationship of those two

3 individuals -- Dr. Chambers and Dr. Hubbard -- to

4 Analysis Group?

5      A.   I don't know the exact relationship between

6 these two individuals and Analysis Group.  Analysis

7 Group is an entity that includes individuals that

8 provide consulting on a number of topics including the

9 ones you're interested in.  We contact Analysis Group

10 generally and I don't know their relationship with the

11 individual consultants.

12      Q.   Okay.  So you don't know if they're outside

13 consultants?

14      A.   I mean, I know that both Dr. Chambers and

15 Dr. Hubbard have other employment, if that's what you

16 mean.

17      Q.   Okay.  All right.  If you could look at those

18 two engagement letters, the one to Dr. Chambers and the

19 one to Dr. Hubbard --

20      A.   All right.

21      Q.   -- tell me when you've had a chance to look

22 over them.

23                    (Witness viewing document.)

24 BY THE WITNESS:

25      A.   I've looked at them.
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1      Q.   All right.  And you've reviewed that document

2 before, right?  It was attached to your testimony?

3      A.   Yes.

4      Q.   And then did you review it before you filed

5 your testimony, during the course of the case in

6 11-0721?

7      A.   Yes, I did.

8      Q.   Okay.  Would you agree those engagement

9 letters are identical aside from the reference to the

10 different doctors and the fees related to each?

11      A.   I haven't done a line-by-line comparison, but

12 they seem to be materially the same.

13      Q.   Do you know why both engagement letters were

14 included in your Exhibit 8.02?  Why did you include

15 both?

16      A.   Why do we include both of them?

17      Q.   Yes.

18      A.   We included the engagement letters for the

19 consultants who were engaged in the course of the

20 proceeding; and both Dr. Chambers and Dr. Hubbard were

21 engaged in the course of the proceeding.

22      Q.   And -- But you're recovering -- you're seeking

23 recovery costs for only one of them; is that right?

24      A.   Yes.  That's correct.

25      Q.   And Eimer Stahl is not seeking recovery for
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1 the other one through its fees, is it?

2      A.   I don't believe any costs were incurred at

3 all.

4      Q.   Well, that would be inappropriate if they

5 were, correct?

6      MR. STAHL:  Object to the form.

7 BY THE WITNESS:

8      A.   No.

9      Q.   Well, can Eimer Stahl's fees include the costs

10 of outside consultants that it engages for ComEd?

11      MR. STAHL:  I'm going to object to the question.  I

12 don't know what you mean, can our fees include the costs

13 incurred in engaging outside consultants.  I just don't

14 know the meaning of it.

15      MR. FEELEY:  Well -- Okay.  I'll ask a different

16 question.

17 BY MR. FEELEY:

18      Q.   Do Eimer Stahl's fees includes the costs for

19 Eimer Stahl engaging outside consultants?

20      A.   The costs of -- Are you asking if it includes

21 the work that they did, the couple hours to engage the

22 consultants, or are you talking about fees that were

23 actually paid to the consultants?

24      Q.   I'm asking, fees charged by Analysis Group

25 that ComEd did not seek recovery through its filing in
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1 this case, are they included in the fees that Eimer

2 Stahl charges ComEd?

3      MR. STAHL:  Go ahead, if you understand the

4 question.

5 BY THE WITNESS:

6      A.   I understand Mr. Feeley to be asking whether

7 Dr. Chambers or Analysis Group on behalf of Dr. Chambers

8 billed some amount, and that amount was paid by Eimer

9 Stahl and that those amounts paid by Eimer Stahl are

10 included in the revenue requirement.  That's what I

11 understand the question to be.

12      Q.   That's my question.

13      A.   No.

14      Q.   What's the answer?  No?

15      A.   The answer is no.  The answer is that

16 Dr. Chambers did not bill us nor did Analysis Group bill

17 us for work done by Dr. Chambers because Dr. Chambers

18 did not, in fact, do any work other than the very

19 preliminary discussions for which we were not billed

20 either directly or through Eimer Stahl.

21      Q.   Okay.  Now, isn't it correct that those

22 engagement letters identify a blended billing rate that

23 Analysis Group would charge to ComEd?

24      A.   For Dr. Hubbard -- I have to look over --

25      Q.   I'll ask a different question.
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1      A.   Okay.

2      Q.   Didn't Analysis Group charge ComEd a blended

3 billing rate?

4      A.   Analysis Group charged ComEd a blended billing

5 rate for the work done by Dr. Hubbard, yes.

6      Q.   Okay.  And Dr. Chambers, in that engagement

7 letter, didn't it also have a blended billing rate?

8      A.   Yes, it did.

9      Q.   All right.  And those rates are different,

10 correct?

11      A.   Yes, they are different.

12      Q.   Okay.

13      A.   They're different because these are different

14 individuals with different skills and their market rate

15 is different.

16      Q.   Okay.  But there's employees or other

17 consultants at Analysis Group who also performed work

18 for ComEd, correct?

19      A.   Yes, there are others in Analysis Group who

20 have done work for ComEd.

21      Q.   Okay.  And their rate doesn't depend upon

22 whether one doctor's views versus another, does it?

23      MR. STAHL:  Are you asking whether the rates for

24 the Analysis Group employees set forth in these two

25 engagement letters are the same --
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1      MR. FEELEY:  Yes.

2      MR. STAHL:  -- in both engagement letters?

3 BY THE WITNESS:

4      A.   I don't know if they are the same individuals

5 contemplated or not.  They do seem to be the same

6 levels.  I don't believe they would actually be the same

7 individuals, though.

8      Q.   Okay.  But as a reviewer of invoices from

9 Analysis Group, say, there was an Analysis employee A

10 and his rate was, you know, $100 an hour when he does

11 work with Dr. Chambers, but then if -- it's $200 an hour

12 when it's Dr. Hubbard, would that be reasonable?

13      A.   I need to know more about the circumstances.

14      Q.   So that might be reasonable for someone to

15 double their rate, depending upon who they work for --

16      A.   If it --

17      Q.   -- is that what you're saying?

18      A.   No.

19      MR. STAHL:  Object, that's not what the witness

20 said.  She said, depending on the circumstances.

21      MR. FEELEY:  Okay.

22 BY MR. FEELEY:

23      Q.   What circumstance --

24      MR. STAHL:  That covers a lot of things.

25      MR. FEELEY:  I'm sorry.
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1 BY MR. FEELEY:

2      Q.   What circumstance would it be reasonable for

3 an Analysis Group employee to double its rate, depending

4 upon who the -- what doctor they were working with?

5      MR. STAHL:  I'll also object on grounds there is

6 absolutely no foundation in the record or reason to

7 believe that that has happened.

8           But you can answer if you know.

9 BY THE WITNESS:

10      A.   I think a lot of would have to do with the

11 tasks that they were performing.  It's perfectly

12 reasonable to expect that different tasks would be

13 billed at different rates.

14      Q.   Okay.  Well, say both doctors had the Analysis

15 Group employee performing the exact same task, would it

16 be reasonable for that Analysis Group employee to charge

17 double versus one -- another expert they were working

18 with?

19      MR. STAHL:  I object.  No foundation.  I think one

20 thing the record is amply clear on is that Dr. Chambers

21 did no work in connection with this case for which he

22 submitted an invoice or was paid in any respect.  I

23 think this is wholly irrelevant and I object to the

24 question.

25      MR. FEELEY:  Your Honor, it is relevant because
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1 these -- this firm was charging a blended rate, so it

2 didn't matter who was performing the work.  It was a

3 blended rate.  So depending upon which witness, whether

4 it was Dr. Chambers or Dr. Hubbard, the blended rate

5 would differ.  So in effect, they would be charging two

6 different rates for the work of an Analysis Group

7 employee.

8      MR. STAHL:  No work was done by Dr. Chambers, on

9 behalf of Dr. Chambers, for Dr. Chambers, in the shadow

10 of Dr. Chambers in any respect relating to Dr. Chambers.

11 I don't think the record could be any more clear on that

12 point.

13      JUDGE DOLAN:  Counsel, do you have any specific

14 examples rather that just throwing out hypotheticals?  I

15 mean, if you're going to allude to that, you should

16 allude to something direct.

17      MR. FEELEY:  Well, we know that they had two

18 dif- -- they had a blended rate, if it was Dr. Hubbard

19 doing the work or if it was Dr. Chambers doing the work.

20 They chose one over the other.  I'm trying to find out,

21 did they choose the one with the higher rate -- that's

22 the relevance here -- or did they choose the one who had

23 the lower rate and would have been more reasonable to

24 the rate payers?  Because it all impacted the work of

25 all those other Analysis Group employees.
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1      MR. STAHL:  I think if you want to ask

2 Ms. Polek-O'Brien if, in fact, the decision was made to

3 hire Dr. Hubbard because he had a higher billing rate

4 than Dr. Chambers, that's fine.  I don't have a problem

5 with that, but that wasn't the question you asked.

6      MR. FEELEY:  I'll go back to --

7 BY MR. FEELEY:

8      Q.   The original question is, is it reasonable --

9 As a person reviewing bills, would you find it

10 reasonable for ComEd to pay more for an Analysis Group

11 employee that -- at a rate that would be double versus

12 if the work had been done by the other doctor?

13      MR. STAHL:  Same objection, no foundation.

14      JUDGE DOLAN:  I'm going to sustain the objection.

15 BY MR. FEELEY:

16      Q.   Regarding the different blended rates for

17 whether it was Dr. Chambers or Dr. Hubbard, did you

18 inquire of Analysis Group why they were charging

19 different blended rates?

20      A.   You know, Mr. Feeley, I'm not so sure we did

21 because it seems pretty evident that the billing rate

22 between Dr. Chambers and Dr. Hubbard were pretty

23 dramatically different, with Dr. Hubbard's rate being

24 substantially higher, and that's what justified the

25 higher blended rate.  I don't know if that was Analysis
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1 Group for making the proposal, but that was our basis

2 for -- one of the basis for agreeing that it was

3 reasonable.

4      Q.   Could you look at ComEd Exhibit 8.05?

5      A.   Yes.

6      Q.   Okay.  Would you agree that the work done by

7 Analysis Group employee, Mr. Malinek, would be billed

8 out differently, depending on which outside consultant

9 their work was associated with?

10      A.   Yes, and in both cases, it was substantially

11 under his regular rate.

12      Q.   But my question was, would his work be billed

13 out differently, depending on the outside consultant

14 that his work was associated with?  Is that correct?

15      A.   The work of everyone on the team would have

16 been billed out at $450 an hour.  If Dr. Hubbard were

17 the witness, as he was, Dr. Hubbard would have been

18 billed at $450 an hour as would have everyone else on

19 his team including Mr. Malinek whose typical rate is

20 $560.

21           If, on the other hand, we had elected to go

22 with Dr. Chambers, then everyone, including Dr. Chambers

23 would be billed at $600 an -- $400 an hour, which again,

24 is less than Mr. Malinek's typical rate of $560 an hour.

25      Q.   I'm sorry?  How much?
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1      A.   560.  Mr. Malinek is a managing principal and

2 his standard rate is $560 an hour; so in either case, it

3 was a substantial discount.

4      Q.   Okay.  I think you've testified about this or

5 you -- Is it correct that -- Did ComEd retain

6 Dr. Chambers without any cost to ComEd?

7      A.   We did not pay Analysis Group or Dr. Chambers

8 either directly or indirectly.

9      Q.   Okay.  And the reason that you retained him

10 was to ensure he would be available and ready in the

11 event that his services were needed in addition to

12 Dr. Hubbard; is that correct?

13      A.   Not necessarily in addition to, but yes, we

14 retained him to ensure that, should we need him, he

15 would be available to us.

16      MR. STAHL:  Your Honors, I'm going to observe at

17 this lull in the proceeding that Staff estimated

18 30 minutes for Ms. Polek-O'Brien.  We're now beyond

19 45.

20      MR. FEELEY:  Do you want me --

21      MR. STAHL:  I'm not making a bill deal out of it,

22 but I do think it's --

23      MR. FEELEY:  I'm sorry.  Do you want me to just

24 stop?

25      MR. STAHL:  No.  No.
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1      MR. FEELEY:  Okay.  Then what's the point of the

2 comment?

3      MR. STAHL:  The point of the comment is that we are

4 operating under some time guidelines and we do have

5 estimates that were made for planning purposes, that's

6 all.

7      MR. FEELEY:  I don't the see --

8      MR. STAHL:  I'm just observing it.

9      MR. FEELEY:  -- point of the comment.

10      MR. STAHL:  I didn't object to a question or do

11 anything other than point it out.

12      MR. FEELEY:  All right.  Well, that standing time.

13 Maybe if you cut that out, we'll move on.

14                     (Brief pause.)

15 BY MR. FEELEY:

16      Q.   All right.  Ms. O'Brien, I direct your

17 attention to the second page of what you were handed.

18 This is the Company's response to Staff data request MGM

19 5.02.

20      A.   Yes.

21      Q.   Could you read the last sentence of that

22 response?  It starts out, ComEd retained Dr. Chambers.

23      A.   ComEd retained Dr. Chambers without any cost

24 to ComEd to ensure that he would be ready -- available

25 and ready in the event that his services were needed in
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1 addition to Dr. Hubbard's services.

2      Q.   All right.  Thank you.  Okay.  If ComEd had

3 engaged both doctors to perform actual work, so they had

4 both working on the case, do you know how Analysis Group

5 would have determined the rate for its own employees for

6 the services they provided?

7      MR. STAHL:  Object, calls for speculation on a

8 purely hypothetical situation.

9      MR. FEELEY:  I asked the witness if she knew -- if

10 she knows or she doesn't know.

11      JUDGE DOLAN:  If you know.

12 BY THE WITNESS:

13      A.   I don't know what Analysis Group -- Group's

14 numbers would have been.  I'm not quite sure if I

15 understood the question.

16      Q.   I wanted to know, if both doctors had been

17 doing work for ComEd, do you know how they would have

18 charged the work for the other Analysis Group employees

19 if both doctors were doing work for ComEd?  And I'm just

20 asking if you know.

21      A.   Well, they --

22      MR. STAHL:  Object.  Are you talking aside from the

23 engagement letters that set forth the --

24      MR. FEELEY:  I'm asking --

25      MR. STAHL:  -- rates?
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1      MR. FEELEY:  -- her if show knows.

2 BY THE WITNESS:

3      A.   We would have expected that the work done for

4 us in the course of the case would have been done

5 consistent with the arrangement that we agreed to in the

6 engagement letter.

7      MR. FEELEY:  That's all I have, Mr. Stahl.

8      MR. STAHL:  Thank you.

9      JUDGE DOLAN:  Ms. Lusson ...

10      MS. LUSSON:  Thank you.

11                     CROSS-EXAMINATION

12 BY MS. LUSSON:

13      Q.   Good afternoon, Ms. O'Brien.

14      A.   Hello.

15      Q.   First, I would like to follow up with the

16 question regarding an answer you gave Ms. Cardoni in

17 response to a question related to the Company charging

18 rate payers for the meals of some attorneys during the

19 course of 2012.  Do you recall that question and answer?

20      A.   No.

21      Q.   I believe the question asked whether ComEd

22 thought it was appropriate if it was charging to rate

23 payers the cost of meals incurred by attorneys who were

24 being paid several hundred dollars -- do you recall that

25 question -- an hour?
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1      A.   Yes, I do.

2      Q.   I should say, several hundred dollars an hour.

3      A.   Yes.

4      Q.   And I believe your response is -- if I heard

5 it correctly -- you indicated, sometimes it's more

6 efficient to charge in that regard?  Was that your

7 response?

8      A.   Sometimes it's -- You have to look at the

9 individual circumstances.  Sometimes it's more efficient

10 to just get something done rather than, you know,

11 breaking for a while and coming back, but I don't think

12 any of those costs are included in the revenue

13 requirement anymore.  I think they've all been removed.

14      Q.   All right.  So all meals have been disallowed

15 or removed by the Company?

16      A.   I believe so.

17      Q.   I want to ask you a few questions about

18 page 2 of your direct testimony.  You asked that the

19 Commission make the finding required by Section 9-229 of

20 the Public Utilities Act and allow ComEd to recover in

21 this docket all of the rate case expenses incurred in

22 2012 and potentially those that were incurred in

23 2011 amortized as described by Mr. Fruehe.  Do you see

24 that there?

25      A.   I do.
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1      Q.   Now, did ComEd incur -- First, let me ask, do

2 Exelon employees and ComEd employees -- and by Exelon,

3 employees I mean, Exelon Business Services -- do they

4 incur or charge the Company for any overtime pay

5 associated with preparation of rate case expenses --

6      A.   No.

7      Q.   -- incurred in 2012?

8      A.   No.

9      Q.   So is it the Company's testimony that there is

10 no in-house incremental expenses, no incremental

11 increase in in-house legal expenses associated with the

12 preparation of the rate cases in 2012 that are being

13 charged in this case?

14      MR. STAHL:  I'm going to object.  I'm not sure that

15 the phrase "incremental legal expenses" is understood

16 the same way by the witness and the questioner.  I think

17 we need a definition of that.

18      MS. LUSSON:  Okay.  Fair enough.

19 BY MS. LUSSON:

20      Q.   So let me ask, first off, is it the Company's

21 position that there is no additional incremental

22 expense -- and by incremental, I mean, in additional,

23 over and above the norm -- associated with rate case

24 preparation by any ComEd employee or affiliate employee

25 related to the rate cases in 2012 that are being
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1 examined through the rate making in this case?

2      A.   I don't know.

3      Q.   And just to clarify, if you know, does --

4 Well, first let me ask, do Exelon Business Services

5 employees work on ComEd rate cases?

6      A.   Yes.

7      Q.   And you yourself are employed by Exelon

8 Business Services?

9      A.   Yes.

10      Q.   Okay.  And do you or any Exelon Business

11 Service employees get paid overtime for working on any

12 rate cases in 2012?

13      A.   No.

14      Q.   Okay.

15      A.   No attorneys.  It's possible that there are

16 some staff who would not be exempt from overtime pay.  I

17 just don't know.  Attorneys certainly are not

18 compensated for overtime.

19      Q.   Is it correct, if you know, that the expenses

20 charged by Exelon Business Services associated with any

21 work provided to ComEd, including any kind of rate case

22 work, is that then charged to administrative and

23 general, that accounting category?

24      A.   I don't know.

25      Q.   Okay.
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1      A.   I believe that's more of an accounting

2 question.

3      MR. STAHL:  Yeah.  I'll point out that that was

4 really not the focus or within the scope of

5 Ms. O'Brien's testimony.  She was talking about fees

6 paid to outside law firms and consultants not to

7 Business Service.  Mr. Fruehe might have been a better

8 witness to ask those questions of or Mr. Trpik or

9 someone else but not Ms. O'Brien.

10      MS. LUSSON:  I understand Ms. O'Brien's testimony.

11 BY MS. LUSSON:

12      Q.   Is it correct that your testimony only deals

13 with those rate case expenses related to, for lack of a

14 better term, that which are outside ComEd and Exelon

15 payroll?

16      A.   Yes.  Those are the fees and costs that I

17 testify about.

18      Q.   For purposes of this case, again, you

19 reference Section 9-229 in your direct testimony, is it

20 the Company's position that Section 9-229 only applies

21 to outside legal services rate case expenses incurred

22 and not any sort of incremental in-house expense that

23 may be charged?

24      MR. STAHL:  Well, I'm going to object.  The

25 Company's position on that particular issue has been set
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1 forth in some detail in the ongoing rate case expense

2 rule making which I'm sure you're familiar with,

3 Ms. Lusson.  I don't think we've taken a position on

4 that in this case, and certainly, Ms. O'Brien is not

5 taking a position on that in her testimony.  So the

6 position has been stated in the rule making.  It's

7 beyond the scope of Ms. O'Brien's testimony and I

8 object.

9      MS. LUSSON:  Well, your Honor, if I could respond.

10 I understand that Ms. O'Brien is here to talk about

11 outside legal expenses.  She's also the witness here

12 presenting herself as the person that's advocating a

13 Section 9-229 finding and justness and reasonableness.

14 So because there is no other incremental -- and she

15 indicate in response to one of my questions that she's

16 not sure, in fact, if ComEd incurred additional

17 incremental expenses associat- -- in-house expenses

18 associated with the preparation of rate cases of 2012.

19 So my question goes to, is it the Company's position,

20 given that she is the Section 9-229 finding witness,

21 that that kind of detailed finding only needs to apply

22 in this case to outside expenses.

23      MR. STAHL:  I also think that's a legal argument

24 that the lawyers can discuss in their briefs as well.

25 It's not really the subject of testimony.  It's, I
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1 think, a little unusual that at the hearing we hear for

2 the first time about a potential issue relating to

3 incremental in-house expenses when through rounds of

4 discovery and testimony, this issue has not surfaced.  I

5 think it's, in addition, far too late in the proceeding

6 to be raising this issue for the first time if, in fact,

7 that is what is being done and I'm not even sure it is,

8 but -- So I have numerous objections to the question.

9      MS. LUSSON:  Your Honor, I think I'm entitled to

10 explore what the interest -- what the Company's position

11 is with respect to Section 9-229 with this witness

12 because she is the witness that is testifying as the

13 vice president of legal.

14      JUDGE DOLAN:  All right.  Well, she can answer the

15 question.  We're going to overrule the objection.

16      THE WITNESS:  Could I just hear the question again,

17 please.

18                    (Record read as requested.)

19 BY THE WITNESS:

20      A.   Yes.

21      MS. LUSSON:  Thank you.  That's all the questions I

22 have.

23           Thank you.

24      MR. STAHL:  Can we have a moment, your Honors?

25      JUDGE DOLAN:  Yes.
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1           We'll go off the record.

2                     (A short break was had.)

3      MR. STAHL:  Thank you, your Honors.  I do have some

4 limited redirect examination, and part of that redirect

5 examination will consist of identifying and

6 authenticating a number of data request responses that

7 are part of the same set that Mr. Feeley was questioning

8 Ms. O'Brien about on his cross-examination.  It will

9 complete the set of data requests that were propounded

10 by Mr. McNally.  I've asked Staff if they would agree to

11 us putting these in as exhibits.  They have not accepted

12 that offer so I guess I will have to ask Ms. O'Brien to

13 identify these as well; so we'll have to go through

14 these one by one.  I'll do that first, then I have just

15 one final question after that.

16           Shall we proceed?

17      MR. FEELEY:  Your Honors, I object.  If he wants to

18 ask some questions about some of the -- some of my

19 cross-examination or some of the DRs that went in in a

20 nonleading manner, then he can do that, but he can't

21 just put a whole set of DRs in through his witness.

22      MR. STAHL:  Well, let's -- We'll do it --

23      MR. FEELEY:  He's got to conduct redirect

24 examination.

25      MR. STAHL:  I will conduct a redirect examination
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1 and we'll see where it goes.

2                   REDIRECT EXAMINATION

3 BY MR. STAHL:

4      Q.   Ms. O'Brien, let me show you what I'm going to

5 mark as ComEd Redirect Exhibit O'Brien 1.

6      MR. FEELEY:  Objection.  He's got to ask nonleading

7 questions of his witness.  He's just trying to get in

8 these DR responses.  He can ask about some nonleading

9 questions about my cross exhibits.  He can ask some

10 nonleading questions about my cross-examination, but he

11 can't just throw in all these DR responses.

12      MR. STAHL:  Well, I hadn't even asked a question.

13 Let me lay a little foundation.

14 BY MR. STAHL:

15      Q.   Ms. O'Brien, the questions you were asked

16 regarding the Staff cross exhibits, what general subject

17 did they relate to?

18      A.   They related to Analysis Group and the

19 potential of Analysis Group, the work that they did, and

20 their qualifications.

21      Q.   And what was the subject for which Analysis

22 Group and Dr. Chambers and Dr. Hubbard were retained?

23      A.   Cost of capital.

24      Q.   Let me show you now what's been marked as

25 ComEd Redirect Exhibit -- I'm told it's 21.  Is this



179

1 a -- Can you identify that, Ms. O'Brien?

2      A.   Yes.  This is a copy of Staff Request MGM

3 4.01, and ComEd's response to it.

4      Q.   And what does 4.01 relate to, the subject

5 matter?

6      A.   Capital structure.

7      Q.   And capital structure, is that the same kind

8 of capital structure for which Drs. Chamber and Hubbard

9 were retained or is that a different capital structure?

10      A.   No.  It's the same issue.

11      Q.   Same issue?  It's the same issue then as

12 reflected in the cross-examination exhibits Mr. Feeley

13 showed you?

14      A.   Yes.  These show the basis for retention of

15 the experts --

16      Q.   And is --

17      A.   -- partially.

18      Q.   -- the answer set forth in that data request

19 response true and correct, to the best of your

20 knowledge?

21      A.   Yes.

22      Q.   Let me show you what is now marked --

23      MR. FEELEY:  Counsel -- I'm sorry -- do you have

24 copies of these cross exhibits?  I don't have them.

25      MR. STAHL:  You mean the redirect exhibits?
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1      MR. FEELEY:  Yes.

2      MR. STAHL:  I have the cross exhibits.

3      MR. FEELEY:  No.  Do you have copies of what you're

4 showing your witness?

5      MR. STAHL:  Of the redirect?  We'll print them.  It

6 will take a minute I'm told.

7           Would you give Staff and the Attorney General

8 a set, too.

9                     (Brief pause.)

10      MR. STAHL:  Shall we proceed while the others are

11 being printed out --

12      JUDGE DOLAN:  Yes.

13      MR. STAHL:  -- so we can minimize the delay here?

14 And just so it's clear --

15      MR. FEELEY:  I'm sorry.  Your Honor, I object to

16 any attempt by Mr. Stahl to get these data request

17 response into the record.  This isn't how you do

18 redirect.  If he has redirect on some questions that I

19 asked, then he can do that, but just throwing in all

20 these data requests, that's inappropriate.  I've never

21 seen that be done before.

22      MR. STAHL:  I suppose what I could do is just put a

23 copy of the data request responses in front of

24 Ms. O'Brien and I could ask the question and she can

25 read the answer, and we would be at the same place.
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1 This is all clearly within the scope of

2 cross-examination because it all relates to the general

3 subject of the reasonableness of hiring Analysis Group,

4 Chambers and Hubbard, work they did, work they didn't

5 do, what they billed, why they did what they did, why

6 they were asked to do it, et cetera, et cetera.  They

7 are all in response to the same set of Staff data

8 requests that consist of the cross-examination exhibit,

9 and I'm just trying to do this the easy way.  We could

10 do this the more cumbersome, indirect way.  As I said, I

11 could just ask the question and have Ms. O'Brien read

12 the answer, but I really don't see the point of that.  I

13 suppose that would be a more pure form of redirect

14 because it would be question-and-answer format, but it

15 seems to me to be a silly and useless formality.

16      MR. FEELEY:  Your Honor, these data request

17 responses are going outside the scope of my

18 cross-examination of Ms. O'Brien.  I went into the

19 procedures that they have set up with regard to

20 Mr. Stahl's firm for retaining.  I didn't go into the

21 reasonableness of them hiring the Analysis Group.  It

22 was all about the procedures, why they have certain

23 procedures.  He's going into something far beyond that.

24      MR. STAHL:  Well, if the only issue that Staff is

25 raising has to do with the procedures followed by ComEd
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1 and outside counsel for hiring Analysis Group and not in

2 any respect to the prudence, reasonableness of hiring

3 Analysis Group or questioning in any way any of the

4 charges that were assessed by Analysis Group, then we

5 have an entirely different set off issues and I think I

6 would be willing to accept that stipulation and we could

7 avoid this round of questioning entirely.  And if Staff

8 is willing to so stipulate, I'm fine with that.

9      MR. FEELEY:  I'm not stipulating with Mr. Stahl.

10 Our position is set forth in our testimony.

11           So I'm not accepting your stipulation.

12      MR. STAHL:  Well, I think then for Mr. Feeley to

13 say that his cross-examination was solely directed to

14 the procedures followed in hiring these people and who

15 wrote the engagement letter, et cetera, is really a

16 little bit disingenuous under the circumstances.  And I

17 believe that I'm entitled to go into these matters on

18 redirect.

19      JUDGE DOLAN:  All right.  We're going to go off the

20 record for one second.

21                     (Discussion off the record.)

22      JUDGE DOLAN:  Mr. Feeley, your objection is to the

23 basis of putting these in because you're saying it's

24 beyond the scope of cross-examination?

25      MR. FEELEY:  Yes.
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1      JUDGE DOLAN:  But they're dealing with the same

2 subjects matter that you were using.

3      MR. FEELEY:  Same subject but a subset of it.  I

4 only did a subset of that subject.  I talked about the

5 procedures of hiring Eimer Stahl.  I talked about the

6 blended rate.  These data requests are going to a

7 different area that this witness attempted to get in

8 through their surrebuttal and we then moved to -- we

9 struck it.  And then what they're really doing is trying

10 to get some more improper surrebuttal in through here.

11 I didn't -- My witness didn't testify in rebuttal; so

12 they're now trying to supplement their surrebuttal

13 testimony through these data requests.  He's going

14 beyond my questions that I asked this witness during

15 cross-examination.

16      MR. STAHL:  But, your Honor, my point is that the

17 data request responses that Staff is trying to introduce

18 that are cross-examination exhibits is not limited, and,

19 in fact, is not even directed to the questions of the

20 procedures followed by any law firm in hiring Analysis

21 Group.  All you have to do is look at these and it quite

22 clearly relates to, what was the relationship between

23 capital structure and the cost of capital.  It's a

24 substantive question.  Then in the next one they're

25 talking about engagement letters -- Were they retained
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1 to do the same -- Were they retained for the same

2 primary purpose?  Did they both perform work within the

3 scope of the engagement letters?  5.04, why was Hubbard

4 chosen to perform the work over Chambers?  Who made the

5 decision?  Again, this has nothing to do with the

6 procedures that our firm followed.  5.05, invoices --

7      MR. FEELEY:  I'm sorry.

8      MR. STAHL:  -- for Dr. Chambers?

9      MR. FEELEY:  Mr. Stahl, what are you looking at?

10 You said 5.04, 5.05.

11      MR. STAHL:  I was looking at the wrong pieces of

12 paper.

13           But it's the same point, because 4.03, which

14 is your Cross Exhibit 2 talks at the relationship

15 between capital structure, the cost of short-term,

16 long-term debt, maturity dates; again, nothing to do

17 with the procedures followed.

18           Cross Exhibit 3, who at the Company is

19 responsible for making capital structure decisions?

20 Again, it's substantive.  Specify the expertise and

21 resources that Analysis Group possesses, which the

22 company does not possess.  Again, that has nothing to do

23 with the relationship between our firm and Analysis

24 Group.

25           Did the Analysis Group participate in the
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1 capital structure report which we have presented in this

2 case?  That's Cross Exhibit 5.  Number 6, again, who --

3 what did -- Essentially what did Analysis Group do?

4 Whose testimony did they review?  Why did they review

5 it?  What did the review consist of?  This is all

6 substantive.  This has nothing to do with procedures;

7 and they provide a copy of all the written work

8 provided -- that Analysis Group provided.  So that's the

9 set of data request responses that I seek to complete

10 through the use of our redirect exhibits.

11      MR. FEELEY:  Can I -- Just a quick response.  He

12 needs to tie his redirect examination exhibits to my

13 cross exhibits.  He's got to specifically tie them and

14 he hasn't -- he hasn't done it.

15      MR. STAHL:  I don't have to specifically tie them

16 to his cross exhibits.  All I need to do is make sure

17 that they're within the scope of his cross-examination.

18 The scope of the cross-examination, as set forth in

19 these exhibits, is the substance, the nature of the work

20 that Analysis Group did, why Hubbard versus Chambers,

21 et cetera.  And that's precisely the scope of my

22 proposed redirect exhibits.  If these cross exhibits

23 come in, I believe my redirect exhibits also have to

24 come in.

25      MR. FEELEY:  You know, a quick response, those
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1 cross exhibits are in evidence.  You didn't object to

2 them, and I'm objecting to your redirect exhibits.

3      JUDGE DOLAN:  All right.  Well, I'm going to --

4 we're going to overrule the objection.

5           Proceed, Counsel.

6      MR. STAHL:  And so, your Honors, for the record,

7 I'll just -- Does everyone have copies of these now?

8           Okay.  Just so the record is clear, ComEd

9 Redirect 21 is the response to MGM 4.01, ComEd Redirect

10 22 is the response to MGM 4.02, ComEd Redirect 23 is the

11 response to MGM 4.08, ComEd Redirect 24 is the response

12 to MGM 4.09, and the last one, ComEd Redirect 25 is the

13 response to MGM 4.11.

14           Aside from that, your Honors, I do have one

15 other question of Ms. O'Brien

16      JUDGE KIMBREL:  Do we have more than one set,

17 Counsel?

18      MR. STAHL:  Pardon me?

19      JUGE KIMBREL:  Did you give us two copies?

20      MR. STAHL:  Here.  Why don't you take my copy and

21 I'll -- Is that all right?

22      MS. LUSSON:  Can I ask you why you numbered them in

23 the 20s?

24      MR. RIPPIE:  Yeah, so that -- It's so we don't have

25 the problem as we sometimes do with the Appellate clerk.



187

1 It's a single series.  So 1 through 19 was our direct;

2 20 is going to be the affidavits that we start today,

3 and 21 will start with the exhibits that we use during

4 the hearing.  The Appellate Court clerks seem to be less

5 confused by that.

6      MR. STAHL:  Shall I proceed with my redirect?

7      JUDGE DOLAN:  Yes.

8 BY MR. STAHL:

9      Q.   Ms. O'Brien, you recall the questions from

10 Ms. Cardoni concerning the Exelon billing guidelines?

11      A.   Yes.

12      Q.   I would like to ask you to explain for the

13 record how ComEd implements those billing guidelines on

14 a day-to-day basis.  Can you explain that?

15      A.   Certainly.  The billing guidelines are a part

16 of the template that we use for what is a -- very much a

17 realtime and an ongoing dialogue about the management of

18 each individual case.  We have lawyers that work day in

19 and day out with the outside counsel on the cases and we

20 assess each issue as it comes up and we look at each set

21 of circumstances and we decide which is the best way to

22 go, both from a legal point of view and a judgment point

23 of view and a cost point of view.  And the guidelines

24 are intended to, and we believe do, give our outside

25 counsel very clear and direct notice that if these sorts
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1 of costs are incurred without our approval that they

2 very much bear the risk they won't be recovered; but we

3 also believe that they're essentially our rules that we

4 can and do -- waive on a regular basis when it's

5 appropriate to do it in our judgment and based on the

6 individual circumstances.

7      MR. STAHL:  Okay.  Thank you.  I have nothing

8 further by way of redirect.

9      MS. CARDONI:  No recross.

10      MR. STAHL:  I have already moved the admission into

11 evidence of all of the prefiled testimony and I'm not

12 sure what the status of Redirect Exhibits 21 through

13 25 -- I think I moved them into evidence, but if I

14 didn't, I do so now.

15      MR. FEELEY:  And for the record, Staff objects to

16 the admission of those redirect exhibits.

17      JUDGE DOLAN:  Subject to Staff's objections,

18 they'll be -- ComEd's Redirect Exhibits 21 through

19 25 will be admitted into the record.

20      MR. STAHL:  Thank you.

21      JUDGE DOLAN:  Thank you, Ms. O'Brien.

22                     (Witness excused.)

23      JUDGE DOLAN:  And with that --

24      MR. RIPPIE:  Your Honor, just for the record, we

25 are filing on e-docket today ComEd Group Exhibit



189

1 20 which constitutes the certifications and affidavits

2 of the ComEd witnesses who are not appearing live

3 attesting to their various prefiled testimonies and

4 exhibits.

5      JUDGE DOLAN:  Okay.  And I've seen various other

6 parties have been filing their affidavits.

7      MR. RIPPIE:  Does -- I'm sorry.

8      THE COURT:  I was just going to say, as we've been

9 going, I've been seeing some of them have been filed

10 already.

11      MR. RIPPIE:  Do you need us to make individual

12 motions to admit those testimonies?

13      JUDGE DOLAN:  Well, you'll probably have to do that

14 just to make sure that the record is complete.

15      MR. RIPPIE:  Why don't I triple check then all the

16 numbers and the exhibit numbers and we'll do that

17 tomorrow morning if that is acceptable to your Honors.

18      JUDGE DOLAN:  That's fine.

19      MR. RIPPIE:  Thank you.

20      JUDGE DOLAN:  And subject to that, 10:00 o'clock

21 tomorrow is fine for everybody?

22      MS. CARDONI:  Judge, as Mr. Bridal and -- is coming

23 up from Springfield tomorrow and the train gets in,

24 allegedly, at 10:10.  Would it be possible to commence

25 at 10:30?
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1      JUDGE DOLAN:  That's fine.

2      MS. CARDONI:  Thank you.

3      JUDGE DOLAN:  It will be entered and continued to

4 tomorrow at 10:30.

5      MR. STAHL:  Thank you.

6      JUDGE DOLAN:  Thank you, all.

7                     (The hearing of the above-entitled

8                      cause was adjourned until

9                      10:30 a.m. October 1, 2013.)
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